AMCO

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED

FERERARAE

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (5 F7: TG M 2 AT RN 7]

(Stock Code B% 13 1X5% : 630)

ANNUAL REPORT

2020
FiR

* For identification purposes only

1 ik 171



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS' REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBRE
NEER
ITERE

IR E S R AT

EXZheMERAE[BN

EEERRE

B LR REARE

EEgRE
¥8 ST A% BRED R &

ReE

op
Bk

MHE

&
K

A MBI R

A mRME

MBHME

Contents

B &%

22
44
61
77

86

87
89
90
92

200

EFRERERQTF
2020 F3;



Financial Highlights
MBRE

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING RESULTS

HIGHLIGHTS

The following table sets forth certain financial information of
AMCO United Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries

MBREERERE

TRENEFZERERRA ([ARAEE
MEAR (GEIAKEDRITFEARZ

(collectively, the “Group”) as of the date for the years indicated: ETHBER:
OPERATING RESULTS (HK$'000) 2020 2019
REXEJE(THER) —E-EF —E-NF
Revenue WA 53,768 67,707
Loss for the year FEEE (34,969) (34,546)
OPERATING RESULTS (HK$'000) 2020 2019
REXEJE(THER) —E-EH —E-NF
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR R# A AE(H#ER 132,093 106,287
Total assets BEE 212,756 192,817
Net assets BEFE 132,093 106,287
Net assets value per share (HK cents) BREEFE (BW) 5.5 5.7
OPERATING RESULTS (HK$'000) 2020 2019
REXEJE(THER) —E-EF —E-NF
Current ratio’ B b R 3.8 3.4
Total debt to total assets ratio? MBS RS E L R 0.4 0.4
Return on total assets (%)3 488 B B3R K (%)3 (16.4) (17.9)
Return on sales (%)* THE B K (%) (65.0) (51.0)
Loss per share (HK cents) B EE (B)

Basic and diluted BERREE (1.7) (1.9)
Notes: B3t -

1. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities.

2. Total debt to total assets ratio is calculated by dividing the total

indebtedness by total assets.

3. Return on total assets is calculated by dividing the loss for the year by

total assets.

4. Return on sales is calculated by dividing the loss for the year by revenue.
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Corporate Information

A-¢

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

AUDITOR

Elite Partners CPA Limited
10/F., 8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM12

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

Www.amco-united.com
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The Year 2020 has marked a year of great challenge facing high level
of uncertainty of the economy as well as the continued political and
social unrest, outbreak of coronavirus and the volatile financial market
in Hong Kong and globally. Despite our efforts to initiate and boost
our momentum of growth by facilitating business development of the
respective business segments during the year, we have experienced
decline in turnover of the Group under the relatively sluggish and
uncertain economic and trade environment in the current year.
Notwithstanding this, we managed to generate relatively stable gross

margin from our sales and services during the year.

Suffered from significant decline in sales order from a major customer
in 2020, revenue generated for the Group's business segment in the
manufacture and sale of medical devices products (“Medical Devices
Business”) has decreased over the previous year. To cope with the
challenge of fluctuating sales order, the Group is persisting to deploy
business strategies of streamlining and outsourcing of business processes,
implementing strict cost control and ensuring effective utilisation of
resources with an aim to maintain its long-term sustainable competitive
advantages in the business segment. In the meantime, the Group is
actively exploring and identifying potential business opportunities to
expand its customer base of the business segment in order to broaden
the income streams of the Medical Devices Business. The Group's
business segment in the manufacture and sale of plastic moulding
products (“Plastic Moulding Business”) has been downsized in recent
years and revenue generated by this business continued to decline in the
current year due to end of product life cycles of most of its products.
With effective product mix fine tuning and cost containment programs
implemented, segment loss of the Plastic Moulding Business has
decreased in the current year, and the Group is of the view that it will
continue the operation of the Plastic Moulding Business as long as it still
contributes sufficiently to share appropriate portion of the administration
and operation cost of the Group. In November 2020, the Group has
completed a capital injection of Chongqging Zhongji Automobile Supply
Chain Management Company should able to further develop the Plastic

Business in the foreseeable future.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

The Group’s business in the provision of construction services in building
construction, building maintenance and improvement works, project
management, renovation and decoration works (“Building Contract
Works Business”) has been confronting challenges under slower growth
of the construction industry and intensified market competition. Revenue
generated for the Building Contract Works Business has decreased over
the previous year caused by decrease in awards of contracts in both
public and private sectors during the current year. Profit margin of this
business has also been curtailed as a result of decrease in awards of
contracts in the private sector which yielded higher margins in price as
well as continuous rise in subcontracting costs resulting from increased
labour costs which resulted in increased operating loss recorded for this
business in the current year. Despite the underperformed result and
stringent market environment of the construction industry, the Group
will continue to deploy efforts in tendering for contracts in both public
and private sectors, particularly contracts which yield higher margins in
price, and make concerted efforts in controlling and managing contract
and operating costs, in order to foster improvement in results of this

business.

The Group's business in the provision of money lending (“Money
Lending Business”) has generated stable income to the Group in 2020.
Segment revenue and segment profit of the Money Lending Business has
both increased in the current year. The Group has recorded a segment
profit for its business of investment in securities (“Securities Investment”)
in the current year. The Group will closely monitor and appraise the
performance of this business and cautiously assess the investment

portfolio from time to time.
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PROSPECTS

Facing elevated challenges as we step into the year 2021 with the
outbreak of COVID-19 and slow down of the economy as well as the
highly volatile financial market in Hong Kong and globally, the Group will
persist to build on its diversified business portfolio and focus its steps
to formulate, evaluate and modify business strategies of our existing
businesses in order to facilitate and motivate their business development
and stabilise any downturn impact. To cope with the business
development of the business segments, the Group will strive to deploy
effective and sufficient capital and resources allocation in respect of the
different business segments, and actively reallocate its assets, funding
and labour force in response to the changing market and industry
conditions and business results. The Group will conduct constant and
dynamic performance appraisals and assessment to evaluate the ongoing
business development. The Group will also concentrate on maintaining
liquidity by effectively managing working capital and controlling costs,
and leveraging operation efficiency by adhering to its lean organisation
structure, in light of any difficulties which may be encountered under the

uncertainties in the economy and financial market.

Alongside with the continuing evolution and modification of business
strategies to develop our existing businesses, the Group will continue to
seek optimisation of its business portfolio by adjusting it to adapt to the
changing business climate, trend and environment, and at the same time
proactively exploring and exploiting every potentially profitable business
and investment opportunity as well as new growth potentials, with
the ultimate goal of developing its business to generate and maximise
shareholders’ value and return and maintain sustainable growth and

prosperity.

Zhang Hengxin
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

RESULTS, BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
Results

The total revenue of the Group decreased HK$13.9 million or 20.5%,
from HK$67.7 million last year to HK$53.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. Such a decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease
in revenue from the provision of construction services in building
construction, building maintenance and improvement works, project
management, renovation and decoration works (“Building Contract

Works Business”).

Gross profit of the Group was HK$13.3 million, representing a decrease
of HK$5.5 million or 29.3% as compared to HK$18.8 million in 2019.
Gross profit margin decreased by 3.1 percentage points to 24.7% (2019:
27.8%), primarily as a result of gross profit margin contributed from
the Building Contract Works Business and provision of money lending

(“Money Lending Business”).

Other gain, net of other income and other gains, during the year
under review recorded HK$3.1 million, a turnaround from other losses
of HK$10.5 million in the corresponding year of 2019, which was
mainly attributable to the unrealised fair value gain of held-for-trading
investments arising from the business of investment in securities

("Securities Investment”).

The distribution costs declined by HK$90,000 to HK$40,000 during
the year under review (2019: HK$130,000), representing a reduction
of 69.2% over the corresponding year of 2019, alongside with the
decrease in revenue of sale of plastic products (“Plastic Products”). The
administrative expenses amounted to HK$48.8 million, which increased
HK$8.9 million or 22.3% as compared to that of HK$39.9 million for
the corresponding year of 2019, primarily as a result of the combined
effect of the impairment losses recognised on intangible asset, loss
allowance for expected credit loss on trade and other receivables and
the share-based payment expenses incurred in current year, and decrease
in staff costs and other general administrative costs under stringent cost

control during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance costs amounted to HK$3.1 million (2019: HK$3.1 million) for
the year under review, which represented interest on bond payables and

lease liabilities.

As a result, the overall loss attributable to owners of the Company
was HK$35.0 million, which increased by HK$0.5 million or 1.4% as
compared to HK$34.5 million loss for the corresponding year of 2019.

Business Review
Medical Products

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Medical Products recorded
revenue of HK$25.8 million, which increased by 46.6% or HK$8.2
million as compared to that of HK$17.6 million in the previous year. This
amount represented 48.0% of the Group’s total revenue for the year
under review. In 2020, due to the outbreak of COVID-19, the demand of
the medical-related products increase, causing sales demand and revenue
of the sale of medical products (“Medical Products”) to increase during

the current year.

Segment profit of the Medical Products amounted to HK$1.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, as compared to segment loss of
HK$0.9 million in the corresponding year of 2019, which was caused
by the increase in sales order. To cope with the challenge of fluctuating
sales order, the Group is persisting to deploy business strategies of
streamlining and outsourcing of business processes, implementing strict
cost control and ensuring effective utilisation of resources with an aim
to maintain its long-term sustainable competitive advantages in the
business segment. In the meantime, the Group is actively exploring and
identifying potential business opportunities to expand its customer base
of the business segment in order to broaden the income streams of the

Medical Products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERE W R D

Plastic Products

The revenue from the Plastic Products decreased by 21.4% or HK$0.3
million to HK$1.1 million, as compared to HK$1.4 million in the previous
year, which accounted for 2.0% of the Group's total revenue for the year
under review. A majority of plastic moulding products have suffered from
declined sales orders as relevant customers’ end products have reached
the end of their product life cycle, causing continuous decline in revenue
of the Plastic Products during the year under review. In view of this,
the Group has ceased the production of the majority of those products
which contributed a relatively low gross profit margin, and has only been
accepting small number of production orders of mould fabrication and

some products, which have a relatively higher gross profit margin.

With persistent efforts in the improvement in profit margins of
sales orders and cost control in the reduction of distribution costs
and administrative expenses, segment results of the Plastic Products
turnaround to profit of approximately HK$85,000 for the year under
review, as compared to loss of approximately HK$45,000 for the
corresponding year of 2019. In November 2020, the Group has
completed a capital injection of Chongging Zhongxunwei Automobile
Supply Chain Management Company Limited which should able to

further develop the Plastic Products in the foreseeable future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Building Contract Works Business

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue from the Building
Contract Works Business generated by ACE Engineering Limited (“ACE
Engineering”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, amounted to
HK$16.3 million, representing a decrease of HK$21.0 million or 56.3%
as compared to HK$37.3 million for the corresponding year of 2019,
which contributed 30.4% of the Group’s total revenue for the year
under review. The decrease in revenue was primarily due to (i) substantial
completion of several significant public and private contracts during
the previous year; and (ii) decrease in awards of projects in both public
and private sectors, under the more stringent and competitive market
environment of the building construction and maintenance industry
caused by slower growth of the industry as well as negative effect of
outbreak of COVID-19 during the year. This business recorded a gross
profit of HK$1.7 million (2019: HK$3.0 million) and gross profit margin
of 10.4% (2019: 8.0%). The increase in gross profit margin was primarily
attributable to increase in awards of projects in the private sector which
yielded higher margins in price; segment loss of this business decreased
to HK$10.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, as compared
to that of HK$11.3 million for the corresponding year of 2019, primarily
as a result of (i) increase in gross profit margin; and (i) an impairment
loss on intangible asset of HK$3.5 million (2019: impairment loss on
goodwill and intangible asset of HK$7.9 million) recognised in the
current year mainly due to the performance of this business had not
matched the anticipation of the management owing to the decrease in

awards of projects for the year.

As at 31 December 2020, approximately HK$7.6 million of the aggregate
contract sums was still outstanding and those twelve construction

projects were pending to be completed within next two years.

Despite the business generated segment loss during the year under
review and the stringent market environment of the building construction
and maintenance industry, the Group will continue to deploy efforts in
tendering for projects in both public and private sectors, particularly
projects which yield higher margins in price, and make concerted efforts
in controlling and managing contract and operating costs, in order to

facilitate improvement in results of this business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Money Lending

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded loan interest
income of HK$10.6 million from its Money Lending, representing a
decrease of HK$0.8 million or 7.0% as compared to HK$11.4 million
for the previous year, which accounted for 19.7% of the Group’s total
revenue for the year under review. Segment loss of the Money Lending
amounted to HK$12.1 million (2019: profit of HK$10.5 million). The
outstanding principal and interest amount of loan receivables as at 31
December 2020 was HK$135.5 million (31 December 2019: HK$136.6
million). In view of the current economic environment and consider
several factors including but not limited to historical defaults of the
debtors of the Company, loss allowance for expected credit loss of
HK$26.3 million has been made for loan receivables as at 31 December
2020 under the expected loss model (31 December 2019: HK$3.9
million). The Group will continue to develop this business by employing
prudent credit control procedures and strategies to hold a balance

between the business growth and the risk management.

Securities Investment

During the year under review, the Group recorded realised gain of
approximately HK$32,000 (2019: nil) and unrealised gain of HK$1.1
million (2019: loss of HK$10.9 million) arising on change in fair value of
held-for-trading investments of listed equity securities in Hong Kong for
the year ended 31 December 2020. No dividend income was received
from the held-for-trading investments during the year under review
(2019: nil). Segment profit of the Securities Investment amounted to

HK$1.0 million (2019: loss of HK$10.9 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held 14 listed equity securities in

Hong Kong with the fair value of HK$24.0 million. In light of the recent

volatile financial market in Hong Kong, the Group intends to diversify

its investment portfolio in order to reduce the relevant concentration

and investment risks and will closely monitor the performance of this

business. The Group will keep adopting a prudent investment attitude

and develop its investment strategy with the aim to improve the capital

usage efficiency and generate additional investment returns on the idle

funds of the Group.

Details of the Group’s top two held-for-trading investments, in terms of

fair value as at 31 December 2020, are as follows:
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RZZE-_TEFE+-_A=+—HB KXEEHH
ZTHMEEBELETRAZBLHEZAABEAR
24,000,000/ 7T ERNIT BB B S BT 5 80 &

AEBBRZ T CEREMAAUREKEHEER R
BRERR WHETRDERZER KRB -AEH
BERREEREEEREELRERE SER

BEARMAXREMNAAEEREE S W KB
REM@R-

PR -_F_TF+_A=+—HZAAEEM
REBZMABIEEEREZFBNOT:

i

Fair value % of
% of gain/(loss) total assets
shareholding for the Fair value of the Group
as at year ended as at as at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2020 2020 2020
BE
—E-EF HEAEHE
R  T+TZA=+-H R-B-EH
—EC-EF LEEZ R-B-2F +=ZA=+-H
+=B=t—H AREE +ZA=t—H ZEERE
Company Name/Stock Code DABE/ BRHEKE ZREBS® Wz (ER) ZAREE Bk
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Securities listed in Hong Kong EBLmES
China e-Wallet Payment Group Limited FESEBINEEBERA
(“China e-Wallet") (802) (Note (a)) (IHEER]) (802)
(M) 1.859% 306 6,069 2.8%
WLS Holdings Limited (“WLS") (8021) EEZERBR AR (DEE])
(Note (b)) (8021) (Hi#E (b)) 1.359% 1,562 5,858 2.7%
Others (Note (¢) it (3 (810) 12,042 5.6%
1,058 23,969 11.1%
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Notes:

(a)

China e-Wallet is principally engaged in the provision of internet
and mobile application and distribution of computer-related and
mobile-related electronic products and accessories. As disclosed in the
interim report of China e-Wallet for the six months ended 30 June 2020,
it recorded unaudited net loss attributable to its owners of HK$19.3
million for the six months ended 30 June 2020. With regards to the
future prospects of China e-Wallet, the Directors noted that China
e-Wallet would expect that the worst case scenario caused by the trade
war have been taken into account by most of its customers. However,
the newly restructuring of the global supply chain, especially the new
supply chain eco-system in China, will take time to see its contributions
towards the market. Hence, China e-Wallet expects the demand for its

services to remain inertial.

WLS is principally engaged in the provision of scaffolding and fitting
out services and other services for construction and buildings work,
provision of gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment installation
and maintenance services, money lending business, securities investment
business and assets management business. As disclosed in the third
quarterly report of WLS for the nine months ended 31 January 2021, it
recorded unaudited net loss from continuing operations attributable to
its owners of HK$20.6 million for the nine months ended 31 January
2021. With regards to the future prospects of WLS, the Directors
noted that WLS remains cautiously optimistic about overall prospects
for its scaffolding sector. WLS will continue to promote the use of the
“Pik Lik” brand scaffolding system to help improve overall efficiency
while boosting the revenue and market share of its scaffolding services
division. WLS will also continue to focus on those business segments
that generate higher profit margins and show ample growth potential
such as money lending operations. In the meantime, WLS will strictly
adhere to its cost control policy, and swiftly adjust business strategies to
its scaffolding business in response to ever-changing market dynamics in

order to generate better financial returns for its shareholders.

None of these investments represented more than 5% of the total assets

of the Group as at 31 December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Looking ahead, the Directors believe that the future performance of the
above investments held by the Group will be volatile and substantially
affected by overall economic environment, equity market conditions,
investor sentiment and the business performance and development of
the investee companies. Accordingly, the Group will continue to maintain
a diversified portfolio of investment of various industries to minimise
the possible financial risks. Also, the Directors will cautiously assess the

performance progress of the investment portfolio from time to time.

Prospects

Facing elevated challenges as we step into the year 2021 with the
outbreak of COVID-19 and slow down of the economy as well as the
highly volatile financial market in Hong Kong and globally, the Group will
persist to build on its diversified business portfolio and focus its steps
to formulate, evaluate and modify business strategies of our existing
businesses in order to facilitate and motivate their business development
and stabilise any downturn impact. To cope with the business
development of the business segments, the Group will strive to deploy
effective and sufficient capital and resources allocation in respect of the
different business segments, and actively reallocate its assets, funding
and labour force in response to the changing market and industry
conditions and business results. The Group will conduct constant and
dynamic performance appraisals and assessment to evaluate the ongoing
business development. The Group will also concentrate on maintaining
liquidity by effectively managing working capital and controlling costs,
and leveraging operation efficiency by adhering to its lean organisation
structure, in light of any difficulties which may be encountered under

the uncertainties in the economy and financial market.

Alongside with the continuing evolution and modification of business
strategies to develop our existing businesses, the Group will continue to
seek optimisation of its business portfolio by adjusting it to adapt to the
changing business climate, trend and environment, and at the same time
proactively exploring and exploiting every potentially profitable business
and investment opportunity as well as new growth potentials, with
the ultimate goal of developing its business to generate and maximise
shareholders’ value and return and maintain sustainable growth and

prosperity.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Capital structure

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's consolidated net assets was
HK$132.1 million, representing an increase of HK$25.8 million as

compared to that of HK$106.3 million as at 31 December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, except for 186,200,000
shares issued upon the exercise of share options, the Company has
also completed a placing of shares (the “Placing”) which a total of
370,000,000 placing shares have been placed on 29 October 2020. For
details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 6 October

2020 and 29 October 2020.

The net proceeds (after deducting the placing commission and other
related expenses and professional fees) from the Placing amounted to
approximately HK$36.4 million. The Company intends to use such net
proceeds of approximately HK$34.2 million for the capital injection
which announced on 6 October 2020 (the “Capital Injection”) and of
approximately HK$2.2 million for the general working capital of the
Group and improve the cash position of the Group which then can help
establishing and strengthening the existing and future business of the

Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has applied the

net proceeds from the Placing as follows:

Bt % [B] B

BEAREE

R-ZEBE_ZTFE+_A=+—B A&EEZHRA
EEFEA132,100,0008 0 BR - —H
F£+ZA=+—H2106,300,000/ 7T 1% A1
25,800,000 7T, ©

BE_Z-_TFE+_A=+—BILFE BNT
15 8% A% 4 % %% 77186,200,0008% A% 15 S A8 22 &) 7R
TRROEE ([REFHE]) ER_T_TF
+ A=+ AEREE ££370,000,0008 B2 & B 15 ©
BB AL2HARRAHAZT-_TF+A
ANBRZE_TF+A=-TNARAZAEL-

FESEEMEFIESE (ENREERE RE
AR R HEEE M) £4936,400,000/ 7T ©
AN BB A B P S SR IRF $H 4934,200,00078 7T
REZZ_TF+AXBMAHZEE ([FE])
K 492,200,000 TAEREE  —REEESD
RBEAEBZREMRN  HEHENRET RIG
SRAEBMIIA RARRER -

HE_Z_ZFST_A=+—HILFE F&H
B RIEZ S RIBFREIENT A

Net proceeds (HK$'000)
FriS IS8 (T T)

Available Utilised Unutilised
AIE A EBA KEA

Purposes Az
- Capital Injection —xE 34,200 34,200 =
— General working capital ——REEES 2,200 = 2,200
36,400 34,200 2,200
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The unutilised net proceeds are placed in the bank accounts of the

Group.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company has 2,418,879,481 ordinary

shares of HK$0.01 each in issue.

Debt structure

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s total borrowings
from financial institutions were zero. The Group’s total cash and bank
balances amounted to HK$4.1 million as at 31 December 2020, which
decreased HK$8.2 million as compared to that of HK$12.3 million as at

31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had bond payables of HK$33.7
million which represented unlisted bonds issued to an independent third
party with an aggregate principal amount of HK$30 million in October
2018. The bonds are unsecured and issued at the fixed interest rate of
10% per annum and will mature on the date falling on the 39 months

after the date of issue of the bonds (i.e. 12 January 2022).

The Group’s gearing ratio was 22.7% as at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: 19.2%). The ratio was determined by net debt, which
was defined as total interest-bearing liabilities comprising bond payables
and lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents, over shareholders’

equity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Working capital and liquidity

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's current ratio was 3.8 (31
December 2019: 3.4). Inventory turnover on sales was 0 day (31
December 2019: 0 day). Receivable turnover was 119 days (31 December

2019: 73 days).

Contingent liabilities and charges

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had not pledged any
assets to secure bank facilities and other borrowings. The Group had no

material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are mainly
denominated in United States dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
Since Hong Kong dollars are pegged to United States dollars and the
exchange rate of Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars was relatively stable
during the year, the Group’s exposure to the potential foreign currency

risk was relatively limited.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s employees number was 31 (31
December 2019: 44). The Group's employees are remunerated largely
based on their performance and experience, alongside with the current
industry practices. Remuneration packages of employees include
salaries, insurance, mandatory provident fund and share option scheme.
Other employee benefits include medical cover, housing allowance and

discretionary bonuses.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Hengxin, aged 37, joined the Company as an Executive
Director on 6 September 2016. He was appointed as the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company (“Nomination Committee”) on 31 January
2017 and a member of the remuneration committee of the Company
(“Remuneration Committee”) on 1 January 2017. Mr. Zhang is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He obtained a Bachelor
Degree in Human Resources Management from Huazhong Agricultural
University in 2006 and Master Degree of Arts in Industrial Relations and
Personnel Management from The University of Warwick, United Kingdom
in 2007. Mr. Zhang has over 10 years of experience in human resources

management in different industries.

Mr. JIA Minghui, aged 30, joined the Company as an Executive Director
on 30 September 2016. He obtained a Master Degree of Development
Economics from the School of Oriental and African Studies, University
of London, United Kingdom in 2013. Mr. Jia has extensive experience
in the international finance and project management. He had been
working in the financial conglomerate in the People’s Republic of China
and responsible for client's project management, projects merger and

acquisition activities.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

BEENSREEAEEN

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Tsz Keung, aged 31, joined the Company as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 11 October 2017. He was appointed as
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each
of the audit committee of the Company (”Audit Committee”) and
Nomination Committee on 11 October 2017. He obtained his Bachelor
of Arts in Economics from The University of Southern California in
the United States in 2011. Mr. Chan had worked as an analyst in the
loan administration department of corporate banking division of a
French investment bank. He had also worked in a United States listed
company and was a sales manager for the Asia Pacific region to handle
clients’ listing projects. Mr. Chan has extensive experience in business
development, sales and marketing and operation management.

Mr. AU YEUNG Ming Yin Gordon, aged 45, joined the Company as
an Independent Non-executive Director on 15 March 2018. He was
appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee on 15 March 2018. Mr. Au Yeung is the
company secretary of China Finance Investment Holdings Limited (stock
code: 875) since May 2019, the company secretary of Values Cultural
Investment Limited (stock code: 1740) since June 2019 and the company
secretary of L & A International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8195) since
November 2019. He is also the company secretary of Cocoon Holdings
Limited (stock code: 428) since February 2019, and was the chief
financial officer and company secretary of Huge China Holdings Limited
(now known as Cocoon Holdings Limited) since May 2015 until August
2017. He was also the company secretary of On Real International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8245) since August 2017 until February
2019, and the company secretary of Success Dragon International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1182) since October 2017 until September
2019. Since May 2000, Mr. Au Yeung held management positions in
an accounting team in ASR Logistics Holdings Limited (now known as
Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry Group Limited) (stock code:
1803) until January 2015. He has over 20 years of experience in the
areas of accounting, taxation, finance and auditing.

Mr. Au Yeung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He obtained a degree in Bachelor of Business
(Business Administration) from the RMIT University in Australia and a
post-graduate diploma in Professional Accounting from the Hong Kong
Baptist University.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. GUO Zhenhui, aged 57, joined the Company as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 15 March 2018. He was appointed as a
member of each of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
on 15 March 2018. Mr. Guo held managerial positions of companies
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China which engage in
manufacturing electronic parts. He has over 35 years of experience in

manufacturing and management.

EEREREBAEBN

BEXE ()
BAFHITEE &)

BEBEE - D+ ER R-FT-/\F=A+1A
BEMARRREEBLIATEE - RN _-F
—NFZATHREZEREBREE GRS
REGRAZKB -BEEREPEARKNE
MK 2 TRRREETERRML  ZF QA
REEEEF A -HAREREETEES
B=thFLR-

ERERERAT
2020 F 3k

21



22

Corporate Governance Report
TREL®RE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of Directors (the “Board”) has always recognised the importance
of shareholders’ accountability and transparency and is committed to
maintaining high standards of corporate governance. The Company has
complied with all code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(“CG Code”) throughout the year ended 31 December 2020 as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(the “Stock Exchange”), except for certain deviations disclosed herein.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code"”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
its Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group and
oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Executive
Directors and senior management who perform their duties under the
leadership of the Managing Director.

The Board currently consists of two Executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman and Managing Director of the Company)
and Mr. Jia Minghui; and three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Chan Tsz Keung, Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon and
Mr. Guo Zhenhui.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board schedules at least four regular meetings a year and also meets
as and when required. During the year, the Board held five meetings.
The company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”)
assisted the Chairman and the Executive Directors in establishing the
meeting agenda, and each Director was able to request inclusion of
items in the agenda. All such meetings were convened in accordance
with the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”). Under code provision
A.1.3 of the CG Code, notice of at least 14 days should be given of a
regular board meeting to give all directors an opportunity to attend.
During the year, certain Board meetings were convened with less than
14 days’ notice to enable the Board members to react timely and make
expeditious decisions in respect of urgent corporate transaction and
general business update which was significant in nature. As a result,
the Board meeting was held with a shorter notice period than required
with the consent of the Directors. The Board will do its best endeavour
to meet the requirement of code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code in
the future. Adequate and appropriate information are circulated to
the Directors normally three days in advance of Board meetings or
such period accepted by them. In addition to regular Board meetings,
the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with the Independent
Non-executive Directors without the presence of other Director during

the year.

Minutes of all Board and committees meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection by the Directors. Draft minutes
of all Board and committees meetings are circulated to all Directors and
committees members for comments within the period accepted by them

after each meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements under
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors with at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or

related financial management expertise.

All Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for specific term.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13

of the Listing Rules and considers them to be independent.

Given the nature and business objective of the Company, the Board
has a balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. The list of current Directors and their
respective biographies are set out on pages 19 to 21 of this annual

report.

Pursuant to Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors
shall retire by rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company
("AGM") provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
the AGM at least once every three years. All retiring Directors shall be

eligible for re-election.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced Board composition
is formed to ensure strong independence exists across the Board and has
more than one-third in number of its members comprising Independent

Non-executive Directors.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Group. Each Executive Director is suitably qualified for his position, and
has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to carry out his duties

effectively and efficiently.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The attendance of each individual Director at the Board meetings, and

the AGM held on 30 June 2020 are as follow:

Corporate Governance Report

EEE(2)
SEANESLEEEEe RS

A=TB8EFZRRBFRG2BFEAMT:

Attended/Eligible to attend

i%ﬁﬂ\&ﬁﬂ:

HE/ AERHE

Board meetings AGM
Executive Directors HITES BE=gg RRBEXRE
Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman and KRB E (FTEFEFLILE) 717 1/1

Managing Director)

Mr. Jia Minghui B RRE LA 717 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BUYFHITES
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung BRE®RESE 7/7 1/1
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon B IS 8% B %k & 717 1/1
Mr. Guo Zhenhui FMHEEEE 77 171

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development

The Company provides regular updates on the business performance
of the Group to the Directors. The Directors are continually updated on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeeping of good

corporate governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing professional
development to develop and refresh knowledge and skills. The Company
has maintained a training record in order to assist the Directors to record
the training that they have undertaken and they are asked to submit a

training record to the Company on annual basis.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development (continued)

During the year, each of the individual Directors has attended training
courses or seminars or read materials relevant to his professional and/or

duties as Director.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year

ended 31 December 2020 is summarised below:

EEE (2
EERIIIREESEXRE &)

Fry SENEFCAMEREER RAARE
T2 W AR B2 B 2 SRR S 5 o B AR
AR

BRI REERE T _BF+_HA=+—H
IEFE 2 ERIEHIC SRt an T -

Course/Seminar

provided/
accredited by Reading
professional body materials

HERBRME
Executive Directors HITES RAZRE AR HEER
Mr. Zhang Hengxin REFESLA - v
Mr. Jia Minghui BHE L E - v

Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES

Mr. Chan Tsz Keung PR 5 o8 5T A4 v v
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon B 65 B St A v -
Mr. Guo Zhenhui SPEE IS 5 v v

All Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and they are committed to participating any suitable

training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance

duties as set out below:

(a)

To develop and review the Company's policies and practices on

corporate governance;

To review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

To review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and employees;

and

To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against all costs,

charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in the execution

of and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto, the Company has

arranged insurance cover for this purpose.
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EERERRE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the

same individual.

Mr. Zhang Hengxin was the Chairman and the Managing Director of
the Company (the Company regards the role of its managing director
to be the same as that of chief executive under the CG Code) during
the year ended 31 December 2020. During the year under review,
the Group has been streamlining its operations, including business
development, operation efficiency and financial management. The Board
considers that it would be in the best interest of the shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”) that the roles of the Chairman and the
Managing Director of the Company be combined to enable a strong and
dedicated leadership to reposition the Company and implement effective
measures to improve Shareholders’ value. In this light, the Company
has maintained Mr. Zhang Hengxin as the Chairman and the Managing
Director of the Company. The Company will review the current structure

when and as it becomes appropriate.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with a specific written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management of the Company. No individual director is involved
in decisions relating to his own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee has adopted the model under code provision B.1.2(c)(ii)
of the CG Code to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior

management.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Directors, a majority of

Corporate Governance Report

i%M\L\iﬁﬂ:
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whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. During the year, the FFHITEF -FR HFWEE BT NEH-
Remuneration Committee held one meeting.
The members of the Remuneration Committee and the attendance of FR @ HFMEZESKERSKEZHFEBRNT
each member during the year are as follows:
Attended/

Eligible to attend
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES HE BB HE
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung (Chairman) FREESE (/) 11
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon BRI 65 B St 171
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Zhang Hengxin REESLA 71

During the year, the Remuneration Committee performed the following

duties:

—  reviewed and recommended the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and senior management for the year ended

31 December 2020.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with a specific written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and diversity of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members and assessing the independence of

Independent Non-executive Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity Policy”)
which set outs the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. In designing the
Board’'s composition, Board diversity is considered from a number of
aspects with reference to the Company’s business model and specific
needs, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due

regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board has also adopted a Directors’ nomination policy (“Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the criteria and nomination procedures on the
appointment of Directors. According to the Nomination Policy, the
ultimate responsibility for selection and appointment of Directors rests
with the entire Board or Shareholders in general meeting, as the case
may be. The Board has delegated the relevant screening and evaluation
process to the Nomination Committee, which identifies suitably qualified
candidates and recommends them to the Board. In assessing the
suitability of the proposed candidate, the Nomination Committee takes
into consideration the candidate’s character and integrity, qualifications
including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience
relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy, willingness
and ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the Board,
fulfilment of the independence requirements as set out in the Listing
Rules (for Independent Non-executive Directors) and diversity on the
Board under the Board Diversity Policy. After reaching its decision, the
Nomination Committee nominates relevant Director candidates to the
Board for approval or for consideration and recommendation in respect
of re-appointment of retiring Directors, for the proposed candidates
to stand for re-election at a general meeting. The Board will have the
final decision relating to its appointment of candidates as Directors or
recommendation of candidates to stand for re-election as Directors at

general meeting.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Nomination Committee comprises three Directors, a majority of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. During the year, the

Nomination Committee held one meeting.

The members of the Nomination Committee and the attendance of each

member during the year are as follows:
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REZHEBERIAT :

Attended/
Eligible to attend
Executive Director BITES HE BB HE
Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman) REELEE (FE) 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKBITES
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung BR B 598 5E 4 1/1
Mr. Guo Zhenhui SRS S 11

During the year, the Nomination Committee performed the following

duties:

(@) reviewed the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service) of the Board;

(b) assessed the independence of the Independent Non-executive

Directors;

(c) reviewed the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy and

monitored their implementation; and

(d) made recommendations to the Board on the retiring Directors for

re-election at the AGM for 2020.
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EERERRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with a specific written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available

on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting process and risk management and internal control

systems of the Group and providing advice and comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon (Chairman),
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung and Mr. Guo Zhenhui. During the year, the Audit

Committee held two meetings.

EZEE®
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HEEE(XTF) REREERBEAERE
MK-FAR BRZESRITRAGH

The members of the Audit Committee and the attendance of each FR G BEXRZEEKENEKEZHEBRWT
member during the year are as follows:
Attended/

Eligible to attend
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES HE BB HE
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon (Chairman) B8R 8 ek (£/F) 2/2
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung PR B 58 5T A4 2/2
Mr. Guo Zhenhui SREE R L 2/2
During the year, the Audit Committee performed the following duties: FRN - EREZEGCDRBITUTRE:
(a) reviewed with the auditor the audited financial statements for the () HEZSMIAREMHE_ZT—-HLF+A

year ended 31 December 2019 and reviewed the unaudited interim
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2020, with

recommendations to the Board for approval,

(b) reviewed report on risk management and internal control systems

covering financial, operational and compliance controls;

(c) reviewed the compliance issues with the regulatory and statutory

requirements;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

(d) reviewed with the management of the Company the accounting

principles and practices adopted by the Group;

(e) considered the independent auditor’'s independence and fees in
relation to the audited financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2019; and

(fy reviewed and recommended to the Board the auditor’s

re-appointment and remuneration.

Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon, chairman of the Audit Committee,
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.21 of the

Listing Rules.

INVESTMENT AND MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The investment and management committee of the Company
(“Investment and Management Committee”) was established by the
Board with written terms of reference. The terms of reference are

available on the website of the Company.

The Investment and Management Committee is responsible for
managing and supervising daily operation of the Company, reviewing
and evaluating any proposed investment activities of the Company and
making recommendation to the Board on the transactions which the
percentage ratio equal to or higher than 5% according to the testing
result of the Listing Rules. It also monitors the investments of the Group.
The Investment and Management Committee comprises two Executive

Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman) and Mr. Jia Minghui.

During the year, the Investment and Management Committee performed

the following duties:

— managed and supervised daily operation of the Company and

monitored investments of the Group.

Corporate Governance Report

i%M\L\iﬁﬂ:

EREE" (&)

d) BEARTDEEEBARBHAEEFRRRNZ
Gt RAIRIER

) BERBURBMIBUMLEREBEZ_Z
—NFT A=+ -HIEFEZLEERY
BHRR2ER: K

H ZHERBEMz2BERFMEALAESS
REHEE-

ERLZECXIFEEGRELEAEEEARE
ERASHERAVEEREEMEE F&
FHRAIEI2VEZRTE -

REREBEES
EFRERIANAZRAREEE
(RAREREZE®)) YEITRAN
WE-RARERZASZBENETARA
GER

‘H]]IJ
18

L

b

&3

_J

o
e
o}
2

ZESREEENEBARALZA
Rl R EARREMNEZRRERDY
TRAMWARERAE ANLE
SRSRMRXFRAEESRHEEZ

BEZEENEEAEEZKRE - KRANR
ERMERTESTRFELRE (XF)

%

il
il
S

<ok
&t

moR O %
prz ]u}

P2

N

il

bt

HE
3O mR
piil
i

X
\H]]H
B
off
HE
o
S

FRNREREEZEERITUTRE:

- EEREREEBEARANATEEREE

REBEHIRE

33



34

Corporate Governance Report
TEEREBE

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Group incurred fees and charges by the auditor, Elite Partners CPA

Limited, in respect of audit services during the year as follows:

BET N &

FRAEERZBRE A ZEEFETER
SEMEBAERARNZERRHASIMT

Fees paid/payable

eft ENEA

HK$’000

Services rendered RENRE FERT
Audit services ZE R 450

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group for the relevant accounting periods under
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs, the results of operations and the cash
flows of the Group. In preparing the financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2020 and for the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Directors have adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them
in conformity with all applicable accounting standards and requirements.
The Directors have prepared the accounts for the reporting year on a

going concern basis.

The responsibility of the Company’s external auditor, Elite Partners CPA
Limited, with respect to these financial statements are set out in the

“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 77 to 85 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and reviewing
their effectiveness. Management is responsible for the design,
implementation and monitoring of such systems, while the Board which
delegated such duties and responsibilities to the Audit Committee,
oversees management in performing its duties on an ongoing basis. The
risk management and internal control systems are designed to assist in
the achievement of business objectives of the Group, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure proper maintenance of
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or publication and ensure compliance with relevant
legislation and regulation. The risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not

absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises risk

identification, risk evaluation and risk management.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify and communicate
risks associated with any activity, function or process within its scope
of responsibility and authority. Risks are evaluated by the Board and
management based on (i) the severity of the impact of the risks on the
Company'’s financial results; (ii) the probability that the risks will occur;

and (iii) the velocity or speed at which risks could occur.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems (continued)

Risk Management System (continued)

Based on the risk evaluation, the Group will manage the risk as follows:

Risk elimination — management may identify and implement certain

changes or controls that in effect eliminate the risk entirely.

Risk mitigation — management may implement risk mitigation plan
designed to reduce the likelihood, velocity or severity of the risk to

an acceptable level.

Risk monitoring — accidents and other situations involving material
loss or near-loss will be investigated and properly documented as

part of the effort to manage risks.

Risk retention — management may decide that the risk rating is
low enough that the risk is at acceptable level and no action is

required. The risk will continue to be monitored as part of the risk

management program to ensure the level of risk does not increase

to an unacceptable level.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems (continued)

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which enables
the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and efficiency
of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. The key components of the internal

control system are shown as follow:

° Control environment — A set of standards, processes and structures
are established to provide the basis for carrying out internal control

across the Group.

o Risk assessment — A dynamic and iterative process is conducted for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives,

forming a basis for determining how risks should be managed.

o Control activities — Actions established by policies and procedures
to help ensure management mitigates risks in the achievement of

objectives of the Group are carried out.

o Information and communication - Internal and external
communication are made to provide the Group with the information

needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring — Ongoing and separate evaluations are conducted to
ascertain whether each component of internal control is present

and functioning.
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EERERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems (continued)

Internal Control System (continued)

In addition, the Company regulates the handling and dissemination of
inside information to ensure inside information remains confidential until
the disclosure of such information is appropriately approved, and the
dissemination of such information is efficiently and consistently made.
The Company has taken various procedures and measures to prevent
a breach of disclosure requirement, including arousing the awareness
to the Directors and employees to preserve confidentiality of inside
information and disseminating information to specified persons on a

need-to-know basis.

Internal Audit

The Company has not established an internal audit department and the
Directors are of the view that given the size, nature and complexity of
the business of the Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint an
independent internal control review advisor (“Internal Control Advisor"),
which is independent of the Group’s daily operation and consists of
professional staff with relevant expertise, to perform the review on risk
management and internal control systems of the Group in order to meet

its needs.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control Review

The Board itself and through the Audit Committee and the Internal
Control Advisor has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems of the Group, which cover
all material controls including financial, operational and compliance

controls.

The Internal Control Advisor has conducted interviews with relevant
staff members, reviewed relevant documentation of risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, evaluated findings of
any deficiencies in the systems and provided recommendations for
improvement. The scope and findings of review on the systems have
been reported to and reviewed by the Audit Committee, who has further

reported to the Board for its review at Board meeting.

In addition to the work of the Internal Control Advisor and review by the
Audit Committee, several areas have been considered during the Board’s
review, which include but not limited to (i) adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company's accounting and financial reporting functions; (ii) the changes
in the nature and extent of significant risks since the last annual review,
and the Group's ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment; and (iii) the scope and quality of management'’s

ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems.

As a result of the above review, the Board considers that the Group's risk
management and internal control systems are effective and adequate for

the year ended 31 December 2020.
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EERERRE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with all
Shareholders. The AGM is a valuable avenue for the Board to enter
into direct dialogue with Shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and
the chairman of Board committees will attend the AGM to answer any
question. In addition, the Company will convene special general meeting
("SGM") to approve transaction and/or matter in accordance with the
Listing Rules and the corporate governance procedures of the Company.
These will provide further opportunities for Shareholders to comment

and vote on specific transaction and/or matter.

The interim and annual reports of the Company are despatched to
Shareholders in a timely manner before the time limits laid by statutory
and Listing Rules requirements to ensure effective communication with

Shareholders.

All the Shareholders are given at least 20 clear business days’ notice
before the date of AGM and at least 10 clear business days' notice for

all other general meetings.

All the annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements and notices
of Shareholders’ meetings as required under the Listing Rules will be

available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Company has also complied with the requirements concerning voting
by poll under the Listing Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures and
the rights of Shareholders to demand a poll are included in circulars to
Shareholders despatched by the Company and explained by the chairman
of general meeting at the meeting. All resolutions proposed at general

meeting are voted separately.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)
Procedures for Convening a SGM

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
SGM. Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company may send a written request to the

Board to request for a SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the Shareholders concerned,
must state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 1104,
Crawford House, 70 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong or at
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda

("Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings

The following Shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general

meeting of the Company:
(@) any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the

requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings (continued)

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the Shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited
at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 1104,
Crawford House, 70 Queen's Road Central, Central, Hong Kong or at
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate actions
and make necessary arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned
would be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto
in accordance with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the

Companies Act once valid documents are received.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director
for election as a Director at a general meeting, the Shareholder should
follow the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election

as a Director”, which can be found on the website of the Company.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to the

Board in writing via the following channel:

The Board of Directors/Company Secretary
AMCO United Holding Limited

Unit 1104, Crawford House

70 Queen’s Road Central, Central

Hong Kong

E-mail: info@amco-united.com

Telephone: (852) 2961 4871

Facsimile: (852) 2125 7001

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general

meetings of the Company.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

HERRZER &)

BRRABRRAELREERZERF
(%)

REARREXNEEYHIER 2 EREER
TZR1,000FEERZANFMMET 2 BH A
RRXARDAZ BB T EEEMI (it AFEH
IREFREF70RRHEAEN04E) LARA 2
BEERODBEELHRLEZTEGRAR (Hik
REAZFRNERISIRAE MAO54E) c KR
A1 H8 7 U B A O 14 R ERE E 1T E) R AR %
Z2HE A MRRERERRES7IR0KZ
REBEXMERZSTORLHMEEZR
io

IRRBERBIRA® LIRABRTEFTUINZA
T22EF FERRABRAQBFEEIH
[ERERMAZEREENREF]TF-

MESEEERREAZIER

PRERAIBERAEAM T AEBUATREAESS
ROEARER:

ERERBRAF

Exe NAWE

BE

IR 2R ARERT0H
THAE104ZE

BE : info@amco-united.com
T FE 1 (852) 2961 4871

S5 : (852) 2125 7001

BEFTRAATNREAS FAEER LS
#e



COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)
Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”) which
sets out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends to apply
in relation to the recommendation, declaration or payment of dividends
to the Shareholders. Under the Dividend Policy, when considering the
recommendation, declaration or payment of dividends, the Board shall
take into account, among others, the Group's financial results, retained
earnings and distributable reserves, liquidity and cash flow positions,
business conditions and strategies, future operations and earnings,
capital expenditure requirements and plans, general economic conditions,
Shareholders’ interests, any restrictions on payment of dividends and
other factors that the Board deems appropriate. The Company does
not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio. The dividend to be
proposed, declared or paid shall be determined at the sole discretion of
the Board, subject to compliance with the Bye-laws, the Companies Act

and all applicable laws and regulations.

COMPANY SECRETARY

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Chan Mei Wah, the
Company Secretary of the Company, has taken no less than 15 hours of

relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December 2020.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional

documents during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Corporate Governance Report

i%ﬁﬂ\&ﬁﬂ:

ERRZBE#

IR B BR

ARARERMA—BEREEE (TREBEK]) -

BOIA R B HE MR RZFH KN BRI
REEAZRARIES - REREBE RERE
EREEN ERIXNENREE EFTEREE
(A BR)AKENMBRE REBF LA
HoRFERE RBESRREREMRN  EHMN
MR RREBH KRB BARAHHT R I
B ABKERE REED RMNBREZEM
BHMEEERREEZEMAR - ARF AL

ﬂfffjiﬁ){ﬁ’]/ﬁgttt ﬁ/ﬂiﬁ' =3 /EM—JLE’]
SEAREZEERRARAT AR AIMA-

REDEN B BREREBRORR

DNAEME

BB ETRAUEI 2% FARZRARAWE
REELXINBE_Z_FTF+_A=1T—8
IEFEEEZ T O/ NS Z HEE S -

REEBRE

RBE_FT_FTHF+_A=+—HLEFE"
RRBzEEXMHABERNEE -



44

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE #HERERHRS

ESG GOVERNANCE

AMCO United Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are determined to establish
a business model that places sustainability into its consideration. The
Group has strived to incorporate various environmental, social and
governance (“ESG") initiatives, such as the environmental management

system and the green office scheme, into its daily operations.

The major impacts of our operations lie on the supply chain as most of
our operations are outsourced. We, therefore, have put our focus on
supply chain management, ensuring that our suppliers and contractors
are environmentally and socially responsible. While we encourage our
business partners to share our ESG values, we closely monitor their
ESG performance and status of compliance with all applicable laws and

regulations.

With an aim of providing excellent product and service quality, the
Group's Business Contract Works Business has established an Integrated
Management System (“IMS”) which abides by ISO 9001, ISO 14001
and ISO 45001 (replaced the previous OHSAS 18001). The IMS has
established several policies and objectives, identified the roles and
responsibilities of employees, aiming to provide customers with high

quality, environment-friendly and secure services.

The Group attaches great importance to human resources management.
We are devoted to protecting employees’ rights, providing employees
with training for continuous development and creating a safe and
healthy work environment. The Group also appreciates the support
from all of its stakeholders including investors, employees, customers,

suppliers, etc. received during the year.

The Group is committed to mitigating the impacts of its business

operations on the environment and contributing to the community.
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ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

Through conducting materiality assessment, the Group has identified the
key ESG topics which are “relevant” and “important” to our business. In
particular, health and safety, employment and development and training
are the issues of high priority; whereas non-hazardous waste and anti-

corruption are also issues relevant to our business but of less importance.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This ESG report addresses all relevant material topics and fairly present
the environmental and social performance of the Group and its impacts.
This report covers all operations of the Group and describes its initiatives
and progress in respect of environmental and social aspects for the year

from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the integrity
of the ESG report. This report is prepared in compliance with the ESG
Reporting Guide issued by the Stock Exchange set out in Appendix 27 to
the Listing Rules.

FEEDBACK

While the report aims to be plain, clear and easy-to-read, we appreciate
any comments that can help improve the content provided in this report.
Any queries or suggestions regarding the content of this report can be

directed to:

AMCO United Holding Limited

Address: Unit 1104, Crawford House, 70 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong
Kong

Telephone: (852) 2961 4871

Fax: (852) 2125 7001

Email: info@amco-united.com
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R HBERERRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS RIBEM

The Group is committed to improving its environmental performance on ~ ANEBH HAEFHERNZERREKIR - REF LR
an ongoing basis. The Group conducts activities in an environmentally ARERANAXHARESES  WEEBEIRR
responsible manner and has implemented an environmental policy. The % - AEBAIRBEEIE HETNTNE R -

Group's environmental management approach is described as below.

+ Compliance with all applicable environmental legislation, standards and regulations

- BIABRRSRER - BRIRER

+ Effective environmental management throughout all business practices

- EAEERERTEREERNNRRER

+ The implementation of measures to prevent pollution, minimise energy and materials
consumption and reduce waste at source by Reduce, Reuse and Recycle (3R) initiatives
- BT ISR - BARRRMEDEELZBROER - ERAARBRBERR)R
Bl IR SRR R

—— Green Procurement RRIZH

« The incorporation of environmental considerations into the procurement process, and
improved environmental performance throughout the supply chain

- RBREZREARFARBBER  URAHEENEBRERE

— Education and Training #&i&ill

+ Raise environmental awareness among sta through education and training

- BRHERIREASINRRSR

— Policy Review Bt

 Review the policy regularly and ensure the continual improvement of environmental
performance

- EHRTBEREBRRTEHRERERE
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

The Building Contract Works Business manages its environmental
impact through the IMS which follows the ISO 14001 Environmental
Management System. Environmental management objectives are set up

under the IMS:

o to ensure proper disposal of chemical waste and avoid release of

toxic gases,

o to ensure legal compliance of engineering activities,

o to reduce pollution caused by air conditioning system in office

premises, and

o to reduce paper consumption and electricity consumption

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group’s IMS sets out reduction of paper and electricity consumption
as one of our environmental management objectives. In alignment with
the Group's environmental management policy, we implemented a series
of measures to minimize the use of materials and energy consumption

by our Reduce, Reuse and Recycle (“3R") initiatives.

This is the fourth year of the Group’s participation in the green office
initiative designed by a third-party consultancy firm, “Let’'s Go”. The
scheme enables us to incorporate concepts of sustainable development
into our daily operations and reduce our environmental footprint through
professional assessment and advice. For resources conservation, green
office practices of the following areas have been widely adopted: paper,
plastic, waste electrical and electronic equipment (“WEEE"), water and

miscellaneous.
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R HBERERRSE

USE OF RESOURCES (continuea) BRER 2
Energy Use and Efficiency RERGE A R Rz

R-ZE_TH AKEEREREERS2KER
REE MEREREZESEAEEETRALS
KEEEE  RPIWERBRBEHR TR

In 2020, the Group consumed a total of 82.2 MWh-equivalent of energy,
and the energy consumption intensity was 1.5 MWh-equivalent per

million HKD revenue. Our energy consumption figures are detailed in the

below table.
Quantity Unit
HE B
Direct energy — gasoline HEER—AH 185.6 GJ
HEH
Indirect energy — electricity HZEEIR—FN 30.7 MWh
K

RE GBI OGER =18 HARQ
EMECEEE THEHEE:

Under the green office scheme “Let’'s Go”, some energy conservation

measures have been implemented in our office premises:

48

Air Conditioning

Switch off air
conditioning system
when not in use

M AR = A RS

Maintain the indoor
temperature at 25.5C

HIRFERNBES25.5°C

Install solar films on
windows

BRFZKRERE

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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Lighting
R

Switch off 'hts when
Retrofi scent
lamps lamps
ALED 2B

Maximi e use of
*

S8 i
Clean lighting
tubes/ﬁdicauy
EHE |V
28

Office Equipment
YN

Switch off equipment
when not in use

TMERRRERARE

Maintain equipment
properly to reduce
energy consumption

ZERERBLED
RETROH

Purchase office
equipment with high

energy efficiency labels

BEARSREMEEN

MmORE
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USE OF RESOURCES (continued)
Energy Use and Efficiency (continued)

To further enhance environmental awareness of our employees and drive
behavioural change, stickers and posters are used as a reminder for

developing greener office habits.

Although energy use is not one of the material ESG topics of the Group,
we will continue to monitor our energy consumption and improve

efficiency in all operations.

Water Use and Sourcing Water

Our total amount of water consumption in 2020 was 4 cubic meters
(2019: 4 m3) and the water consumption intensity was 0.07 cubic meter

per million HKD revenue (2019: 0.06 m? per million HKD revenue).

There was no issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

The Group’s operations do not involve any use of packaging material.

EMISSIONS

The most significant environmental impact of the Group's office-
based operations is carbon emissions from energy consumption of our
office premises and vehicles. In this regard, the Group adhere to our
environmental management approach to prevent pollution and reduce

waste at source.

The Group's operations strictly comply with all environmental laws and
regulations, including the Air Pollution Control Ordinance, the Ozone
Layer Protection Ordinance, the Water Pollution Control Ordinance and

the Waste Disposal Ordinance.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any violations of relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group,
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and

land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
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R HBERERRSE

EMISSIONS (continued)
Air Emissions

In 2020, the amount of air pollutants, namely nitrogen oxides (NOXx),
sulphur oxides (SOx) and respirable suspended particles (RSP), emitted
from our operations were 3.6 kg (2019: 3.0 kg), 0.1 kg (2019: 0.1 kg)
and 0.3 kg (2019: 0.3 kg) respectively.

GHG Emissions

The Group's greenhouse gases (GHG) emissions include direct emissions
(Scope 1) from gasoline used and energy indirect emissions (Scope 2)
resulting from generation of purchased electricity. In 2020, our total
GHG emissions were approximately 30 tonnes of carbon dioxide-
equivalent (2019: 31 tonnes of CO2-e) and our GHG emission intensity
was 0.56 tonnes of carbon dioxide-equivalent per million HKD revenue

(2019: 0.46 tonnes of CO2-e per million HKD revenue).

BERR ()

JE& 58 BE Bk

T CEF BNEBLEERNERISEY
(BRE E® (NOx) ~ & b (SOx) K Al i A
BFRT (RSP) ) D RlB3.6F= (ZT—NF:
3.0F%) 01Fm (ZE—hF:01F=) %03
FR(ZE—NF:03FR)

BERBE BN
AEENEEREBEMEEFERIRELENE

BEHW(HEDARBEENEENEIRRAE
P (HE2) - —ZE_FTF ZMAREREBH
MBS RKBE_E{tREE (ZT—NF:31
—EthERE) MAERERRTEASS
EBAETWAS —ELitE & (=2 —NF:
FREBTWACLME —ELHEE)

Scope gE 2020 2019
—ECEF —ZT-NF

tCO2-e tCO2-e

WM-_ELRER WS EE

Scope 1 — direct emissions WEN—-BHEYER 14.4 16.0
Scope 2 — energy indirect emissions #[E2 —fE R HER 15.6 15.4

As GHG emissions is the key cause of climate change, the Group shall
continue to monitor the carbon footprint of our operations and identify

possible areas for mitigating our impacts on the environment.

Waste

Due to the nature of our office operations, the amount of hazardous
waste and non-hazardous waste produced is considered to be immaterial

for disclosure.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

We are committed to minimising the environmental footprint of our
operations, including those outsourced. For waste management, the
Group's Building Contract Works Business strictly complies with the
Waste Disposal (Charges for Disposal of Construction Waste) Regulation.
It applies for billing account for disposal of construction waste to adhere

to the polluter-pays principle.

The Building Contract Works Business also properly collects wastewater
and then discharges it into the sewage system; collects waste oil cans for
centralised disposal; and examines the Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS)
of solvents used. The Plastic Moulding Business recycles scrap plastic

materials and resells to upstream suppliers.

SOCIAL ASPECTS
Employment and Labour Practices
Employment

The Group has developed a working environment in which management
and employees work together in a cooperative and responsible manner,
striving to adopt the best social practices and maintain good employee

relations.

During the reporting period, the Group did not have record of any
material non-compliance relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal

opportunity, diversity and discriminations.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)
Talent Management

The Group has formulated comprehensive human resources policies to
ensure its operations comply with domestic labour laws and regulations,
including Employment Ordinance and minimum Wage Ordinance. The
policies include employment terms and conditions, working hours, rest
periods, promotion, compensation and dismissal, benefits and welfare,
staff training and development, employee code of conduct and corporate

practices.

We offer competitive remuneration packages to attract and retain
talented staff, in which discretionary bonus and other benefits including
mandatory provident fund and medical care are provided. Our employees
are entitled to annual leave, sick leave, maternity leave, jury service
leave, compensation leave, marriage leave, compassionate leave,
paternity leave and public holidays under the Employment Ordinance. In
addition, we carry out regular salary reviews for our employees, on the
basis of employee’s performance, financial condition of the Group and

external factors such as the condition of the Hong Kong economy.

Equal Opportunities, Diversity and Anti-
discrimination

The Group is committed to providing a non-discriminating workplace
which is free of intimidation and harassment. The Group offers equal
opportunities of employment irrespective of sex, age, marital status,

ethnicity, religion, disability or employment status.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group is committed to providing a safe and healthy working
conditions, equipment and systems for all employees, and to provide

such information, training and supervision as they need for the purpose.

We strictly comply with all occupational safety related laws and
regulations, including the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance,
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance and Fire Services Ordinance. During
the year, the Group was not aware of any violations of relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group, relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.

Our office-based operations do not involve any high-risk areas related
to occupational health and safety (“OHS") of its staffs. Nevertheless,
the Group has implemented a health and safety policy and ascertained
that every employee is fully aware of his/her role and responsibilities for
promoting and maintaining a safe and healthy working environment.
A number of precautionary measures have been taken to ensure office
security, such as avoiding placing obstructions in passageways and
exits. In addition, our employees are insured under the employee's
compensation insurance in accordance with the requirement of the

Employee’s Compensation Ordinance.

The Group is aware of the OHS risk in its supply chain. The Building
Contract Works Business manages the subcontractors’ OHS performance
through the IMS which abides by the ISO 45001 Occupational Health
and Safety Management System. It monitors health and safety measures
implemented by the subcontractors to ascertain effective controls that
are in place to mitigate health and safety risk at construction sites. OHS

Objectives are established under the IMS:

o to strengthen OHS awareness of employees, and achieve zero

violation of OHS laws and regulations, and

o to guarantee occupational safety of employees and strictly monitor

the accident rate per half year to be zero.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY (continued)

The Building Contract Works Business’s OHS management system
consists of six major components: work hazard analysis, personal
protective equipment (“PPE”), employee safety manual, risk assessment,
health protection plan, and fire safety. Project managers carry out regular
site visits to monitor the OHS performance of its subcontractors and
ensure that safety managers are performing their duties properly. The
safety managers are assigned to carry out work hazard analysis and risk
assessment and ensure that workers are equipped with appropriate and

sufficient PPE.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group invests in training and development to sustain a competent
and professional workforce that is able to contribute to its success.
We provide continuous training and development opportunities for
employees, at both professional and personal levels, to motivate and
up-skill existing staffs to align with our business needs and the ever-

changing environment.

All new employees receive induction training. On-job training including
professional skills, customer service skills and environmental knowledge
is provided to help employees get familiar with the job duties. To support
employees in fulfilling their career aspirations, the Group has a tuition
reimbursement scheme for staff taking courses related to their job duties

at reputable institutions.

To cultivate a team of professionals that will contribute to our success,
competent employees are promoted to senior positions based on merit.
Salary increases, improved benefits and changes in job titles are usually

associated with promotions.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

LABOUR STANDARDS

While the Group does not operate in locations where child labour risk is
high, we work closely with our suppliers and subcontractors to ensure
they do not use forced or child labour in their production facilities or
construction sites. During the year, the Group did not receive any reports

relating to the use of child or forced labour.

OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

As most of our operations are outsourced, maintaining a stable and
productive supply chain is the key to the Group's success. We strive to
establish mutually beneficial working relationships with suppliers and

contractors to jointly enhance product and service quality.

We require our suppliers and contractors to adhere to sustainable
business practices. The Group evaluates and monitors their environmental
and social performance in terms of ethical issues, human rights, product
responsibility and environmental impact, making sure that all suppliers
and contractors adhere to our code of conduct and procurement policies.
In return, we provide transparency and fairness in our procurement

process and contractual agreements.

The Group's Building Contract Works Business engages subcontractors
for projects works including building construction, building
maintenance and improvement works, revocation and decoration works.
Subcontractors with comprehensive quality management systems and
safety management systems such as ISO certification are given priority.
They are selected according to the following criteria:  reputation, price,

qualification, quality and compliance.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Supply Chain Management (continued)

The Group adopts multiple procedures to monitor the service provided
by subcontractors. Technical directors and engineers are responsible for
monitoring and supervising the works carried out by subcontractors.
After consultation with technical directors, the engineers review and
analyse whether the service levels and capabilities of subcontractors

meet our requirements.

If any supplier or contractor is found to have a low score, we examine
whether its performance will affect the quality of our products or
services and take remedial actions where appropriate. The Medical
Devices Business and Plastic Moulding Business maintain stable and
long-term relationships with major suppliers to ensure reliable supply of

certified products.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group strives to meet customers’ demands and expectations
through maintaining high quality of services and products. We continue
to optimise our quality management system, focusing on products and

services standards, data privacy and customer satisfaction.

The Medical Devices Business manufacturing facility is I1SO 13485'-
certified and U.S. FDA?-registered. In order to meet the stringent
qualification requirements and approval from regulatory authority, we
undergo strict quality control testing and get our products certified
by third parties before sending them to the market. During the year,
the Medical Devices Business completed the renewal of ISO 13485

certification and FDA registration.

! Quality management system of molding and assembly of medical device

components for diabetics care.

Z The Food and Drug Administration of the United States of America. The Medical
Devices Business holds FDA certification for Class | Medical Devices.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

As a registered general building contractor and a registered minor
works contractor under the Buildings Ordinance as well as an authorised
building contractor of the Hong Kong Housing Authority, the Group’s
Building Contract Works Business has a well-developed operational
procedure that standardises project management and supervision of
works conducted by subcontractors to ensure conformity to contractual

specifications. The following diagram illustrates its operational flow:
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

The Building Contract Works Business follows the work guidelines
stipulated in IMS, which is in line with 1ISO 9001 Quality Management
System, so as to minimise potential risks during the construction process.

Quality management objectives are set up under the IMS:

e to minimise the number of formal written complaints received from

customers for the same project during the same year,

o to ensure that the customer satisfaction level achieves a specified

score,

e to monitor and review work procedures to ensure no delays, and

o all work defects raised by customers must be followed up promptly
upon receipt.

The Group complies with all applicable laws, regulations and

international standards while conducting quality inspection in the

designated construction phase and prior to product delivery. IMS

managers are assigned to investigate, follow up and report any non-

conforming products or services. We make corrections where appropriate

to avoid recurrence of similar incidents.

Data Privacy and Customer Satisfaction

The Group respects the privacy of its customers and maintains the
highest security and confidentiality on customer data. We strictly comply
with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and have established a set of
rules to guide employees in protecting customer information. Employees
are responsible to protect customer information against improper
disclosure, misuse or unauthorised use, loss, damage or corruption.
They exercise caution and obtain prior permission before disclosing any

confidential information to any party outside the organisation.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)
Data Privacy and Customer Satisfaction (continued)

To continuously improve the quality of our services, we regularly collect
and analyse customer feedback in aspects of quoted price, service
attitudes, product quality, site conditions, delivery communication, etc.

Corrections are made to ensure customer satisfaction.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any violations of relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group,
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters

relating to the products and services provided.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group believes that honesty, integrity and fair play constitute
important practices. We have established a robust internal control
framework to prevent behaviours such as bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering. A code of conduct has been stipulated in the staff
handbook which lists proper business practices and prohibited acts,

including soliciting advantages and accepting gifts.

The Group's operations comply with all anti-corruption related laws and
regulations, including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance. During the
year, the Group was not aware of any violations of relevant laws and

regulations, including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance.

Conflicts of Interest

Our employees are regularly reminded that they must declare to the
Directors any conflict of interest that may arise or has risen between
their personal interests and those of the Group, and to avoid engaging
in business, investments or activities that might result in conflict with
interests of the Group. Directors should disclose potential conflicts of the

interest to the board.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION (continued)
Conflicts of Interest (continued)
Whistle-blowing Policy

We encourage the reporting of suspected internal business irregularities
and provide clear channels specifically for this purpose. Any employee
who becomes aware of any existing or potential breach of the code
of conduct is encouraged to report promptly to the human resources
department. The Group takes appropriate actions, including disciplinary

action, termination of employment or preventive action.

Cases of suspected corruption or other criminal offences are reported
to the independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) or other
appropriate authorities. During the year, there were no concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its

employees.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Striving to be a responsible corporate citizen, we are committed to
making our community a better place to live. We respect local culture
and value, encourage our employees to participate and contribute in

community activities on a voluntary basis.

In 2020, the Group participated in various charitable activities, including
the “Community Chest Dress Casual day” and “Community Chest Skip
Lunch Day”. We also made sponsorship in the “Goodman Interlink Magic
Mile Charity Ramp Run”, which supports a three-year eye healthcare
project undertaken by the Fred Hollows Foundation in Huan Xian
County, Gansu Province. We hope that these activities can help create a

harmonious society, bearing our fair share of social responsibility.
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The Directors submit herewith their report together with the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 32 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
is set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 5 to 7 and pages 8 to 18 respectively of this

annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income on page 86 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 200 of this annual

report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital are set out in

Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ESEHE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In the opinion of the Directors, there is no reserve of the Company
which is available for distribution to Shareholders at 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Jia Minghui

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Tsz Keung
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon
Mr. Guo Zhenhui

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Zhang Hengxin and
Mr. Guo Zhenhui shall retire by rotation from office at the forthcoming

AGM, and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries of the

Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Zhang Hengxin

Mr. Jia Minghui

Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin

Mr. Wong Wai Keung Alfred
Mr. Chan Kwong Lai Henry
Mr. Mak Shu Sang

Mr. Fong Kwok Wai

Mr. Lee King Yi

Ms. Chung Wai Fong

Mr. Wang Tong

Mr. Yu Chengbin
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Chan Tsz Keung, an Independent Non-executive Director, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 October 2017, which may be terminated by one
month’s notice in writing served by the Company on Mr. Chan or by

instant notice in writing served by Mr. Chan on the Company.

Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon, an Independent Non-executive Director,
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 15 March 2018, which may be terminated
by one month’'s notice in writing served by the Company on
Mr. Au Yeung or by instant notice in writing served by Mr. Au Yeung on

the Company.

Mr. Guo Zhenhui, an Independent Non-executive Director, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 15 March 2018, which may be terminated by
one month’s notice in writing served by the Company on Mr. Guo or by

instant notice in writing served by Mr. Guo on the Company.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other

than statutory compensation).
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ESEHE

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of

EERBSTHRAERAQFAR
M EZER G  HERORE#E
w2 EBERRR

RZTEZEF+A=+—HB ARAEEK&
BITBABRARARSEMEREEZE (EER
BHEREHAEGRN ([FHRKPEED])EXVE)
E’Jﬂxf’ﬁ BRI G REEZ TR HEE S LRREE
FH N E GO E321RA AR RIFENE LM
BRPAE IRBELEMETAESETELR
S ZAESFR| ([BEESFA]) B RTHEARRQA]
REBHERSHARAR ([BRF]) MR

Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) were as follows. SORBUIR ©
Long positions ¥R
Shares and underlying shares of the Company & 2 A IR 17 R 16 B IR 17
Approximate
percentage of
Number of the issued
underlying share capital
Name of Director Capacity shares held of the Company
(Note 1)
HEATE BT
EEHE g4 FsHBROEE BRAZBEHBEAH
(HHaET)
Mr. Zhang Hengxin Beneficial owner 18,620,000 0.77%
(Note 2)
RTEBEAE EnEAA (PFEE2)
Mr. Jia Minghui Beneficial owner 18,620,000 0.77%
(Note 2)
ERELE ExnEAA (FfF3E2)
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon Beneficial owner 18,620,000 0.77%
(Note 2)
BLFS 88 B St A EmEA A (Ff7E2)
Notes: B

1. The calculation of percentage figures is based on the relevant number of
shares as a percentage of the number of shares of the Company in issue
as at 31 December 2020.

2. These underlying shares are share options granted by the Company on
4 May 2020 under the share option scheme of the Company at the
exercise price of HK$0.087 per share.
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SHARE OPTIONS

Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme”)

was adopted by the Company on 30 June 2015.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to

grant share options to the eligible participants as incentives or rewards

for their contributions to the Group. The eligible participants (“Eligible

Participants”) to whom the Directors may in their discretion make an

offer for grant of share options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme

belong to the following classes of participants.

(1

any employee (whether full time or part time, including any
executive director but excluding any non-executive director) of the
Company, any subsidiary of the Company or any entity in which any

member of the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”);

any non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, any subsidiary of the Company or any

Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or

any Invested Entity;

any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development or other

technical support to any member of the Group or any Invested

Entity;
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(6) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group

or any Invested Entity;

(7) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area of
business or business development of any member of the Group or

any Invested Entity;

(8) any other group or classes of participants who have contributed
or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business arrangement to the development and growth of the

Group; and

(9) any company wholly owned by one or more Eligible Participants.

On 4 May 2020, the Company had granted share options to the eligible
participants to subscribe for a total of 186,200,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company at the exercise price of
HK$0.087 per share for a validity period from 4 May 2020 to 3 May
2025 pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

Details of the above grant of share options are set out in the Company’s

announcement dated 4 May 2020.
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As at 31 December 2020, the total number of shares available for KRZ-ZZT =
issue under share options granted under the Share Option Scheme was

372,400,000. Movement of share options during the year ended 31

December 2020 as below:
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ZEF+-_A=1t—RH REBER#E
BB ZBRERTAIHRZETZIRMNEARK
/372,400,000 - REZE _Z_TF+ A
=t HLFE BEREZEZFHNT:

Outstanding Lasped/  Outstanding
at Granted Exercised Forfeited at
Exercise Vesting 1 January during the during the during the 31 December
Date of grant price  Exercise period period 2020 year year year 2020
RZBZBE
gt Janb 23 RER +=A
-B-H RER RER  BER/ =t-8
BREAH ke EH BEA iR R 2RI BfE Lt e
HKS
A
Directors
Ez
Zhang Hengxin 4 May 2020 0.087  From 4 May 2020 to No - 18,620,000 - - 18,620,000
3 May 2025
R7E it S 35 :?:%Eﬁﬂ@ﬁ% E
TANA “Z-nfRA=A
Jia Minghui 4 May 2020 0.087  From 4 May 2020 to No - 18,620,000 - - 18,620,000
3 May 2025
G Z3C3F ZZ-ZENAMAE E
TANA “Z-nfRA=A
Au Yeung Ming Yin 4 May 2020 0.087  From 4 May 2020 to No - 18,620,000 - - 18,620,000
Gordon 3 May 2025
BE#E -k 2 “Z-ZERAMAE £
TANA “Z-nfRA=A
Employees 4 May 2020 0.087  From 4 May 2020 to No - 130,340,000 - - 130,340,000
3 May 2025
EE —E-Ef “E-TEFRMAZ i
TANA “Z-nfRA=A
26 April 2019 0.096  From 26 April 2019 to No 93,100,000 - (93,100,000 = =
25 April 2024
“T-NE Z-NEMAZTREE &
MA=1~H ,§,@¢EH TIH
26 July 2017 0.123  From 26 July 2017 to No 186,200,000 = = - 186,200,000
25 July 2022
“Tt% ZE—+ErAZTREE B
tAZ+RH ZERCEEACZTRE
Other eligible 26 April 2019 0.096  From 26 April 2019 to No 93,100,000 - (93,100,000 = -
participants 25 April 2024
HtaERSHE _—T-NF E-NFOA-TRHE £
MA=1~H ,i,@¢EH apil=
372,400,000 186,200,000 (186,200,000) - 372,400,000

The closing price of the shares immediately before the date of share

options granted on 4 May 2020 is HK$0.083.

BER_E_SEFANBRHEBEREZBA
B 0 W T 8 450.0837 7T
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option holdings disclosed above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Apart from the transactions disclosed under the heading “RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS” as set out in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements, there were no other contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business, to which the Company, its holding
company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisting at the end of the year or at anytime during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for service contracts, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company were entered into or subsisting during the year ended

31 December 2020.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements. None of these related party transactions during the year
constitutes a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, the interests and short positions of the
persons or corporations other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:
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FTERREREMATRERTR
DREBRD 2EERAXR

RZBE-_ZFT_A=1T—H BERAEEFK
BETBRAEMM  THALHRAR (AREE
FHARFDITHRABRINRARA RN KA
Bin A ERARRRIRIEE 5 K E &S
EICHATHREZECMAZESERARNT

Long positions )
Shares and underlying shares of the Company EREARGREER G
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
Number of share capital
issued ordinary of the Company
Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares (Note 1)
HERAFE BT
RAZBHBDL
£8B B EEHE ERTEBERHYE (MHzET)
Gong Hongwei Beneficial owner 126,430,000 5.23%
EAAR EREBA (Note 2)
(Mt3E2)
Notes: B EE -

1. The calculation of percentage figure is based on the relevant
number of shares as a percentage of the number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2020.

2. According to the disclosure of interests notice filed by Gong
Hongwei on 26 November 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, so far as is known
to the Directors and the chief executive of the Company, no persons or
corporations (other than Directors or chief executive of the Company)
had, or deemed or taken to have, interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO, or who were directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the
number of any class of shares in issue of the Company, carrying the
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company.

1. BOLBFDRERABRODBEBEGAAIATNRZ
TR FET_A=+—HEEITRHEBEZ
BAOLLEE-

2. BEELAENR-_T-_TF+—-A=-+BE

R BERL -
BEXFREEN R-E-TF+-A=+—

B BEARREERESTHRABRA HEA
THRAR(ARBESFTHHZRITRAERINE
YW E ESR BN AR BRMD LR P -
BERARRRIRIEE 5 R BAE &P £3361578
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, sales attributable to the Group’s
largest customer accounted for approximately 22% of the Group’s
consolidated revenue and aggregate revenue attributable to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 62% of the

Group's consolidated revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 62% of the
Group's total purchases and aggregate purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 96% of the

Group's total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, or their
respective associates, or Shareholders owning more than 5% of the
Company's number of shares in issue had any beneficial interests in any

of the five largest customers or suppliers.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the

Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in

Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) throughout the year ended 31 December
2020 as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing

Rules™), except for certain deviations disclosed herein.

Code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code requires notice of at least 14
days should be given of a regular board meeting to give all directors an

opportunity to attend.

During the year, certain Board meetings were convened with less than
14 days’ notice to enable the Board members to react timely and make
expeditious decisions in respect of urgent corporate transaction and
general business update which was significant in nature. As a result, the
Board meeting was held with a shorter notice period than required with
the consent of the Directors. The Board will do its best endeavor to meet

the requirement of code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code in the future.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the

same individual.

Mr. Zhang Hengxin was the Chairman and the Managing Director of
the Company (the Company regards the role of its managing director
to be the same as that of chief executive under the CG Code) during
the year ended 31 December 2020. During the year under review,
the Group has been streamlining its operations, including business
development, operation efficiency and financial management. The Board
considers that it would be in the best interest of the shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”) that the roles of the Chairman and the
Managing Director of the Company be combined to enable a strong and
dedicated leadership to reposition the Company and implement effective
measures to improve Shareholders’ value. In this light, the Company
has maintained Mr. Zhang Hengxin as the Chairman and the Managing
Director of the Company. The Company will review the current structure

when and as it becomes appropriate.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and
consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of business
operations. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a balance between
the quality and efficiency of our services and the minimisation of
greenhouse gas emissions and environmental degradation. Accordingly,
the Group has taken a proactive approach to effect internal and external
communications by means of telephone, emails and conferences or such
other communication means which are efficient yet environmentally
friendly. Also, the Group are able to minimise physical travelling and

printing.

Details of the Company’s environmental policies and practices are set
out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 44

to 60 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Group are one of the most important assets and
stakeholders of the Group and their contribution and support are values
at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation and benefit
policies accordingly to industry benchmark as well as the individual
performance of employees. Other fringe benefits, mandatory provident
fund and share options are provided to retain loyal employees with the
aim to form a professional staff and management team that can bring

the Group to different levels of success.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Directors believe that maintaining good relationships with customers
has been one of the critical reasons for the Group’s success. Our
business model is to maintain and build on our strong relationships
within our client base. Our mission is to provide the finest service to our
customers and the Group is constantly looking ways to improve customer
relations through enhanced services. Regarding Money Lending Business
and Securities Investment, the Group has no major suppliers. Whereas
regarding the other principal businesses, the Group has maintained good
relationship with the suppliers to ensure their continued support to the

Group in the foreseeable future.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include strategic,

operational and financial risks.

Strategic Risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan based on the knowledge to the
external environments. The Group will invest in projects and investments
based on the strategic plan in order to cope with the market demand
and expectation. Given the rapid change of unforeseeable external
environments in the financial and equity markets, the Group is facing
significant strategic risks on its investments when changing the strategic

plans to adopt the unexpected changes of external environments.

Operational Risks

Management regularly reviews the Group's operations to ensure that
the Group's risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise, resulting from
fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and compliance matters,

are adequately managed.

Financial Risks

The principal financial risks are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated

financial statements headed “FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT".
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS” on pages
65 to 67 of this annual report, the Company has not entered into any

equity-linked agreements during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors, secretary and other officers and
every auditor for the time being of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them, shall or may incur or sustain
by or by reasons of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duties in their respective offices or otherwise in

relation thereto.

The Company has taken out insurance against all losses and liabilities
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought

against Directors and other officers of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, the Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with any relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on

it.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
its Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon (Chairman), Mr. Chan
Tsz Keung and Mr. Guo Zhenhui. The Audit Committee has reviewed with
the management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited results for the year ended 31 December
2020.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws, or the
laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the

year ended 31 December 2020.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no significant event after the end of the reporting period.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 were

audited by Elite Partners CPA Limited.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint

Elite Partners CPA Limited as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Hengxin

Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

elite
partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AMCO United
Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 86 to 199, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary

of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZHEMRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

FARFLER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, RIEESENFEHE BREZEBEATEEX
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial ZAHMMGETBREPEEENETH-TF
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the BERBEBGEAFBERRLMIULEDNE RIFEIE
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, WS =HE MAERELEEHEBERZR -

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
BREEXRSEHE

Impairment assessment of cash-generating unit relating to
building contract works business

FHEFREIREBZRETELENL B EFG

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had fully impaired the non-
financial assets which allocated to the cash-generating unit
("CGU") relating to building contract works business. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had recognised
impairment loss on intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$3,470,000 and HK$433,000
respectively.
RZZ-BF+-_A=+—H' EXEZIUBEEZERE"
HNDAREFMETARIREB 2R eELABN ([REeEL
Bl REBE-_FT-_TF+_A=+—HIFE EEEH®
REVEERYE BERREREBED BI#3,470,000% 7T
433,000/ 7T ©
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEEERPUAEERREE

Our major audit procedures in relation to the
impairment assessment of CGU relating to building
contract works business included the following:
EERARETARIREB RS ELENNRE
EETHNEIEEREFEENTEE:

e  Obtained cash flow forecasts relating to the CGU
prepared by management and approved by the
directors;

e HNSHERERELEFEMEFEHECELEM

ZHREREEA



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HREERSHE

Impairment assessment of cash-generating unit relating to
building contract works business (continued)

FHEFREIBEBFZHEELEVR B ETE (&)

For the purpose of the impairment assessment of the CGU
of building contract works business, the Group appointed an
independent external valuer to assess the recoverable amount of
the CGU at the end of the reporting period.

REFERIREB2RELBUNRENGNE E£EH
ZEBULINDEERMTERSEEEUNREPHRNATRE S -

We had identified impairment assessment of the CGU of
building contract works business as a key audit matter because
significant management judgment was required to determine the
key assumptions including estimated future income, operating
margins and discount rate, etc. and the amounts involved were
significant.
EECRETFARIREB R CEAEUMNRET G R
REZFR REARETHRRR (BEMIRREAN EEF
HERMREE)AEEEENREHB RIS REEEK-

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR

EREXEE &)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEEERPUNAEERREE

e Assessed the methodology and basis used and
the appropriateness of the key assumptions used
in arriving at the forecasts;

o FHEEHTRBIPTAN T ERELEUNKTABRR
REEEE

o Challenged the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry;

o HEREMUEBRITRNMZ BREABRKRKRKN
BN

. Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
reliance of the input data used; and

o DR ANiREFTAE ASBRAERM LA
53

o Evaluated the competency of the independent
external valuer taking into account its experience
and qualifications.

o REARBIUIBEEMOLRRERR FHEHE
P 1E R

EFRERERQTF
2020 F3;
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZHEMRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BREERSHE

Impairment assessment on loan receivables

FE W B 5% 59 6 18 A1

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's loan receivables with
carrying amounts of approximately HK$109,210,000, net of
allowance of credit losses of approximately HK$26,257,000.
RZZEZZEF+_A=+—H  B5ENEREREEENS
109,210,000/ 7T * R {5 & 5 18 % 5 4926,257,000/8 7T ©

Management performed the impairment assessment of loan
receivables based on the information included but not limited
to the credit profile of different customers, the aging profiles,
their knowledge about the customers, market conditions and
past settlement patterns. Management also considered forward-
looking information that may impact the customers’ ability to
repay the outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected
credit losses for the impairment assessment.

EREERE (BFEETRN) TRATEFNEERR REREBERL H
EPNRHB THERALBEEEEASENYRINERETR
BfE - ERETERAATVETFERRERERNE NN
EMAER UEEDREF AN EREEEE -
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FEREMREE &)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEEERTPUNAEERXEE

Our major audit procedures relating to the impairment
assessment on loan receivables included the following:
EERERREFRENGETHNEIZEXEFBENU
&I

o Evaluated and tested the design and
implementation of the relevant key controls over
the assessment and monitoring of credit risks,
and determination of allowance for expected
credit losses;

o FMERAIGEERBEEERIE R RER
WEFEHREEBHREAEE:

o Understood and evaluated the modelling
methodologies for expected credit losses
measurement, assessed the reasonableness of the
model selection and key measurement parameters
determination;

e THMINLEHEEBEASNREESE G
BRIEEN S B R AR EL2BOETE



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HREERSHE

Impairment assessment on loan receivables

FE W B 5% 89 60 18 A1

We had identified impairment assessment of loan receivables as
a key audit matter due to the assessment involved the use of
significant management judgment and estimates
EEEHBERERNREN G AEREZEE REKNGEY
RERBIEL A ERHE R A5t

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR

EREXEE &)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEEERPUNAEERREE

o Discussed with management to understand
the management’s identification of significant
increase in credit risk, defaults and credit-
impaired loans, corroborated management’s
explanation with supporting evidence;

e HEREENWUTHREREHGEERR BAR
EERBEEREZENNBN UXFEIEEE
BB

e Assessed the reasonableness of economic
indicator selection and assessed the
reasonableness of the estimation.

o MAEKERSEENSEERMEGTHEEME:

o Checked major data inputs used in the expected
credit losses model on sample basis to the
Group's records; and

o MBI ARE EXEERHEHEERERR
HITANFEHEREA K

e Assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures
in relation to loan receivables included in the
consolidated financial statements.

o it BEREMNGEMBBRABERE R K

BRARE.

EFRERERQTF
2020 F3;
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA HRE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group's financial reporting process.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR

BRBEARERGES
EHEE

Bt 75 ¥R 3R R A
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA HRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements for the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Wong Ho Kwan with Practising Certificate Number

PO7543.

Elite Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
10/F., 8 Observatory Road

Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBEskEMEE kS

=

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_-F_-F&{+-F=1+—HAULFE

2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
=E-2F —EFNF
Bt = FHExT FHT
Revenue WA 7 53,768 67,707
Cost of sales and services S I R A AR (40,468) (48,914)
Gross profit EF 13,300 18,793
Other income and other gains or losses £ b Yg A 2 E i Uz sk &5 18 8 3,107 (10,454)
Distribution costs 21BN (40) (130)
Administrative expenses THFX (48,844) (39,933)
Finance costs MG ER 9 (3,064) (3,077)
Loss before income tax BT EBHAIEE 10 (35,541) (34,801)
Income tax credit FristHiE e 11 572 255
Loss for the year attributable ARARBEEAEBLFERSSE
to owners of the Company (34,969) (34,546)
Other comprehensive income Hit2H K&
ltem that may be reclassified HiegrEfoEEEm2EE
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of EFINEREL 2
foreign operations N ER 832 -
Total comprehensive loss EAREEANEREE
for the year attributable >HEBBREARE
to owners of the Company (34,137) (34,546)
Loss per share BREE
Basic and diluted BEARREE 12 HK(1.71) cents& HK(1.85) centsifll

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2020




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

a PR R R

As at 31 December 2020 R=-F-_FF+=-A=+—H

2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—B2-%F —EFAF
B 5 FHET FAET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W WEREE 15 277 2,194
Goodwill GRS 16 - =
Intangible assets BVEE 17 — 3,470
Equity instrument at fair value FRBEREAREBEIERZ
through profit or loss EmTA 18 35,851 =
36,128 5,664
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19 34 34
Held-for-trading investments BIEEERE 20 23,969 14,277
Trade and other receivables B kEMEWKKIEA 21 148,494 160,554
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBASEEY 22 4,131 12,288
176,628 187,153
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H e 58 23 46,578 53,214
Lease liabilities HEaE 26 413 1,354
46,991 54,568
Net current assets REEEFE 129,637 132,585
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERARBER 165,765 138,249
ERERERAT

3
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEeEMBARRE

As at 31 December 2020 HR=—F=-FTF+=-HF=1+—A

2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
=E-2F —EFNF
Bt = FHExT FHT
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Bond payables FERHEFH 24 33,666 30,666
Deferred tax liability BEEBHIBEE 25 — 572
Lease liabilities HEBE 26 6 724
33,672 31,962
Net assets EEFME 132,093 106,287
EQUITY =
Share capital A& A< 27 24,189 18,627
Reserves % s 107,904 87,660
Total equity EEBE 132,093 106,287
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for 4 AP K BREKLCEETe N T - —F= A
issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2021 and are signed on its =+— B ERRETZE THUATALTRE
behalf by: wE:
Zhang Hengxin Jia Minghui
S EHE
Director Director
o 2
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Annual Report 2020



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2020

REREagER

BE-_B2_FFf+-HA=+—HULFE

Share option Translation Accumulated
Share capital ~ Share premium reserve reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)
BA& B3 %E BRERE EifE 2t EE @it
Fisn T T Tt FHr Fisn
(Hfita) (Hiz#b) (Hiztc)
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-A=t-8 18,627 402,912 10,771 1,591 (298,066) 135,835
Adjustment on initial application of BAEREEHNEREER
HKFRS 16 1652 BE = = = = (1) (1)
Adjusted balance as at 1 January 2019  R=Z—-AF—A—-B2Z
BRARER 18,627 402,912 10,771 1,591 (298,077) 135,824
Loss and total comprehensive income  FEEERZARZLE
for the year - - - - (34,546) (34,546)
Lapse of share options BREA N = = (7,020) = 7,020 =
Recognition of equity-settled share-based LAk 1A AERERLE
payment expenses DEG P4 - - 5,009 - = 5,009
As at 31 December 2019 and RZFB-AF+=A=+-H
as at 1 January 2020 k=Z=-ZF-f-H 18,627 402,912 8,760 1,591 (325,603) 106,287
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (34,969) (34,969)
Other comprehensive income for the year: 4 [ £ 4 2 i Y35 -
Exchange differences on translation BEBNEBELL
of foreign operations EXER - - - 832 - 832
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FE2ENE/ (BB)2E
for the year - - - 832 (34,969) (34,137)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based AR BEREHEE 2
payment expenses REGEPL - - 5,068 - - 5,068

Exercise of share options IFEERE 1,862 21,022 (5,009) - = 17,875

Placing of new shares REMRH 3,700 33,300 - - - 37,000

As at 31 December 2020 i 33

+-A=1+-H 24,189 457,234 8,819 2,423 (360,572) 132,093

Notes: Hst -

a)  The application of share premium account is governed by Section 40 of a) RN EERZERIERE—NL/\—F2Q A
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. EEAOGIRE -

b)  Share option reserve represents the fair value of services estimated to b) BRERKEEFALZEEEBHEHEBER
be received in exchange for the grant of the relevant share options EMUARBEA AT EEEZREZ AR E
over the relevant vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair B HEAEDERNEREABEABZAR
value of the share options at grant date. The amount for each period BE - RERER 2B ERKEERE
is determined by spreading the fair value of the share options over HMB)ESBEREARBETUEE I
the relevant vesting period (if any) and is recognised in administrative FT IR A 3 W 3R, - 1 AR FE 1 DN A A R AR
expenses with a corresponding increase in the share option reserve. 1o

c) Translation reserve represents exchange differences relating to the ¢ EX{EEDERNEBGIER 2 EEFEH

translation of the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations from their
functional currencies to the Group’s presentation currency (i.e. Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$")) are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the translation reserve. Such exchange
differences accumulated in the translation reserve are reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the foreign operations.

Hp e B8 BE/AEEZ 2B (1A
(BT ABZELZH EEENE
o2 E W R RN ELFEED R %
ERELFEBERF ZELZF BN HEEI
EBBEROREER -

EFRERERQTF
2020 F3;
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B FEF-—E-TF+=-F=+—HIFE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EC-EF “E-hF
FHExT FHT
Cash flows from operating activities RELETBZ2HERE
Loss before income tax W P15 4% Al ES 18 (35,541) (34,801)
Adjustments for: HTINEBELE 2 AR
Depreciation of property, W BRERZE (BEERE
plant and equipment (including BE)NE
right-of-use assets) 1,038 1,349
Impairment loss recognised in respect of MYWE BELRZEERRZ
property, plant and equipment B B 1R 433 338
Impairment loss recognised in respect of REERRABEERE
goodwill - 6,379
Impairment loss recognised in respect of REFEERRZBEERE
intangible assets 3,470 1,546
Impairment loss recognised under expected BHEEEBEABTER
credit loss model, net of reversal BAEEE - D 26,289 976
Loss on disposal of property, LEME BEREEZ
plant and equipment BB - 133
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RRB ARz (62) -
Gain on change in fair value of FRBEREARBEIIRZ
equity instruments at fair value through BmTAZAREE
profit or loss SEplias (202) =
Realised gain on change in fair value of BEEEREZANEBEEEYZ
held-for-trading investments EE# RN (32) -
(Gain)/loss on change in fair value of H{ BEERECZAREE
held-for-trading investments g2y (WxE) BE (1,058) 10,941
Share-based payment expenses AR ABER 2 HRAX 5,068 5,009
Interest income FEKA (1) (5)
Interest expenses FEREZ 3,064 3,077
Gain on early termination of lease RERIEHAE 2 KE (12) =
Operating cash flows before working EELESRBA2KRE
capital changes BERE 2,454 (5,058)
Decrease in inventories FTERLD = 111
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 R E AW FRIA
other receivables (&), m (14,229) 16,586
Increase in held-for-trading investments BIEEEREL M (8,602) -
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 K H fth JE S 5RIE R A (6,565) (13,551)
Net cash used in operating activities HETEE I H 2 FE (26,942) (1,912)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EC-EF —E-hF
FHExT FHT
Cash flows from investing activities RERETBZHERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME WEREE - (350)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERXREZ
plant and equipment Fr{S 38 - 150
Purchases of equity instruments at BESRAERKRANE
fair value through profit or loss EIRZERIA (33,747) =
Net cash outflow from disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBAT 2
WEmH T8 3) =
Interest received 2 U FE 1 5
Net cash used in from investing activities REZEEHZH L FE (33,749) (195)
Cash flows from financing activities REMEZTHz2RERE
Interest paid 2RFE (64) (3,077)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHER®E (1,201) (828)
Proceeds from placing of new shares B & F AR D 2 FT 1S kI8 37,000 =
Proceeds from exercise of share option 1T R MR 2 PTAS RRIE 17,875 =
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEZEHESL(BH)Z
financing activities B2 FEE 53,610 (3,905)
Net decrease in cash and RERESEEYRI EZRE
cash equivalents (7,081) (6,012)
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—BzEERK
as at 1 January REeEEY 12,288 18,300
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExgsoE (1,076) =
Cash and cash equivalents RTZA=+—HZHREK
as at 31 December ReEEEY 4,131 12,288
Represented by: B
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHEH 4,131 12,288
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GENERAL INFORMATION

AMCO United Holding Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda with limited liability on 19 August 1994 as an
exempted company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
with its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 28 November 1996. The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of
the Company is located at Unit 1104, Crawford House, 70 Queen's
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in (i) sale of medical products;
(ii) sale of plastic products; (iii) provision of construction services
in building construction, building maintenance and improvement
works, project management, renovation and decoration works; (iv)

provision of money lending; and (v) investment in securities.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$ or
thousamds of units of HK$ (“HK$'000"), which is the same as the

functional currency of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
and by the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at their fair value at the end of the reporting

period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs are to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique is
calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation

technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at

the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3. EAHITRKEITEBMK
TO HKFRSs & 2R

(a) RAFERFERZHFT R

(a) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time in the current

year:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Conceptual Framework for Revised Conceptual Framework

Financial Reporting 2018 for Reporting

The Group has not early applied any new and amendments
to HKFRSs that is not yet effective in the current year except
for the amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions. Impact on the applications of these amendments

to HKFRSs are summarised in note 3(c).

Except as described in note 3(c), the application of other
new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HKFRSs (continued)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective

The following new and amendments to HKFRSs have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early

applied by the Group.

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts®
Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture*
Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
and Related Amendments to
Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)3
Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-20202

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021

P Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined

The directors anticipate that the application of these new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRSs (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

HKFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical expedient to
lessees in accounting for rent concessions arising as a result of
the COVID-19 pandemic, by including an additional practical
expedient in HKFRS 16 that permits entities to elect not to
account for rent concessions as modifications. The practical
expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the

following criteria are satisfied:

e the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease

immediately preceding the change;
e any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

e there is no substantive change to other terms and

conditions of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

3. ERAHMIREEIETRME

H28| (2)

(o) BFBXREH &)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRSs (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions (continued)

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may be accounted
for in accordance with this practical expedient, which
means the lessee does not need to assess whether the rent
concession meets the definition of lease modification. Lessees
shall apply other requirements of HKFRS 16 in accounting for

the rent concession.

Accounting for rent concessions as lease modifications would
have resulted in the Group remeasuring the lease liability to
reflect the revised consideration using a revised discount rate,
with the effect of the change in the lease liability recorded
against the right-of-use asset. By applying the practical
expedient, the Group is not required to determine a revised
discount rate and the effect of the change in the lease liability
is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the event or

condition that triggers the rent concession occurs.

The Group has elected to utilise the practical expedient for all
rent concessions that meet the criteria. In accordance with the
transitional provisions, the Group has applied the amendment
retrospectively, and has not restated prior period figure. As
the rent concessions have arisen during the current financial
period, there is no retrospective adjustment to opening
balance of accumulated losses as at 1 January 2020 on initial

application of the amendment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ - F_-FF+_-_F=+—AILEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

4.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:

e has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one

or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESTHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.1 Basis of consolidation (continued) 4.1 BEERE (&)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities

were disposed of.

4.2 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from the
investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of

these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ - F_-FF+_-_F=+—AILEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.3 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is initially
recognised at cost being the excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred over the fair value of identifiable

assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
("CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from

the synergies of the acquisition.

A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable
amount and whenever there is an indication that the unit may

be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis
of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However,
the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the individual
asset’s carrying amount to below its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or its value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent

periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESTHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.4 Property, plant and equipment 4.4 ¥ BERRZE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are recognised as an expense in profit or loss

during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The useful lives are as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.4 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on

disposal.

4.5 Leasing

Definition of lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract

are subsequently changed.

The Group as lessee
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It
also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.5 Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease

liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the

commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and

conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item

on the consolidated statement of financial position.

4. FESTTHEBRE 2)

45 HE (#)

EEBEBEMBA ()
RRA#EEE

EREEERAR:

HERBWVIRETES R

o RF%KA B ZATEL A E(E
EREREAEREEES:

s AEBEEENTANBERK
ZAN3

o AKEERFHEBREBEE:
K18 P M B B R AR B B E IR TR
B GRAR S A5R A FIT AR T IR RE B
EE R RANEET

AR ERKARER R TE R
BEEEFE YR EERENER
Bt EFEHRAE-

REERRE M BRRARKEREE
E2JREBEE -

ERERERAT
2020 F 3k

103



104

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
* e B 3R 3k M A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.5 Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily

determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)

less any lease incentives receivable; and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate

the lease.

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for

a lease modification as a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one ore more underlying asssets;

and

e  the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular

contract.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.5 Leasing (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

45 HE (&)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

4. FESTTHEBRE 2)

The Group as lessee (continued)
Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has elected
to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether the
change is a lease modification if all of the following conditions

are met:

e the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease

immediately preceding the change;

e any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

e there is no substantive change to other terms and

conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16
if the changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness
or waiver of lease payments are accounted for as variable
lease payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted to
reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the period in

which the event occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.6 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is

regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated

impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised

in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mf\éﬂjﬁiﬁi M;J.%I

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESTHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments 4.7 BT A

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All reqgular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market

place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Loan interest which are derived from the Group’s ordinary

course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling

in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term

profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

4. FESTTHEBRE 2)

4.7 HB IR (#)
HBEE (&)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial

asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost

or fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")

as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly

reduces an accounting mismatch.

(1)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer

credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRMRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as

FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in

the “other income and other gains or losses”

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss ("ECL"”) model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, loan receivables, other receivables, deposits and
cash and cash equivalents) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at

each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial

recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESTHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued) 47 BT H (%)

Financial assets (continued) BBEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) MG EERE (&)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessments are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the end of the

reporting period as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default

occurring since initial recognition.

EHIRHEEEREN AR T AR
FHIRMBRGEENFHFELNES
FEBR-BAR T -—EABEHREER
BEE(T-_EARBEEBE])E
RN IRE B BR12E A ARTREE AL
MEDNEHELENE) Z2HEHREE
BlE-FEDREAEEBEEES
BER IYREBARERR —K
BOBEAIA R EI R E HIR 2 & ik
T Ko AR SRAR L FER O R Ak 1 5

AEE-ERABUESERZ2H
BHEEEE-

B HEMTIAMS AEBFES
BRESRT _EAEREEERE
BIFEEERR B MR ERAREE
A AARKEEREHEREES
B-hEEREER2HRMEES
BIHER B MR ERARELENN
ARt R EBR R T EE Lt

111



112

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the end of
the reporting period with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external or internal credit

rating (if available);

—  significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a financial instrument, e.g. credit
spread or the length of time or the extent to which
the fair value of a financial asset has been less than

its amortised cost;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(M)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

-  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability

to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet

its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 90 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

information that demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
end of the reporting period. A financial instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if the financial
instrument has a low risk of default, the debtor has
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term, and adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the

debtor to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay the Group in full, without taking into account any
collaterals or other credit enhancements held by the

Group.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 180 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more

lagging default criterion is appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

REMBRRME

HE-F-—FF+-A=1—HILEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESTHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued) 47 BT H (&)

Financial assets (continued) BBEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (continued) WS EERE (&)

(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets (i) BEEERENYEEE
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more EREHMBEE 2 RRE
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated EREEETNEE —EHHS
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. BEH 2R ZMBEEEMNHR
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes FEERE -MBEEEEREZ
observable data about the following events: BREEEATEGZAIEEH

7%

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the =

borrower;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due =

event;

- the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or —
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

— itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter =

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that o

financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

(v)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to the Group’s recovery procedures. Any

recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL
on trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward looking information that is available without

undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

(continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective

interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when

formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share

similar credit risk characteristics.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRMRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

(continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is

calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised

through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount

and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESTHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued) 47 BT H (%)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial

liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the

HBEEERRATA
DES L

BEHEEBEATATREANRHFNE
BENUHEABERRATANEERDSE

contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial R EESARA
liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments RATA

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and other
payables (excluded contract liabilities) and bond payables, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRMRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.8 Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their designated location. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale.

4.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand
deposits with banks, short-term deposits with bank with
original maturities of three months or less, and short-
term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash on hand and at bank and short-
term investments as defined above, net of outstanding bank

overdrafts.

4,10 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is

transferred to the customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESTHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
410 REEZEFEHNZWA ()

4.10 Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

e  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

e the Group’'s performance creates or enhances an asset

that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed

to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required

before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is

due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same

contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Revenue from contracts with customers

4, FESHBEBRE (2)

410 REEZFFESHNZWA (&)

(continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance

in transferring control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to
consideration in an amount that corresponds directly with
the value of the Group's performance completed to date, the
Group recognises revenue in the amount to which the Group

has the right to invoice.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised at a point in
time when control of the products has transferred, being
when the products are delivered to the customers and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products. A receivable is recognised by the
Group when the products are delivered to the customer which
represents the point in time at which the right to consideration
becomes unconditional for which only the passage of time
is required before payment is due. Payments received in
advance that are related to sales of goods not yet delivered
to customers are recognised as contract liabilities. Revenue is
recognised when the goods are delivered to the customers.
The normal credit terms granted to customers ranging from 30

to 90 days.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4. FESTTHEBRE 2)

410 REFZFESHNZWA (&)

4.10 Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised over time
when the Group’s contract work creates or enhances an asset
that the customers control as the Group performs under the

contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation under the contract
using the output method of direct measurement of the
value transferred by the Group to the customer relative to
the remaining work promised under the contract based on
progress certificate issued. Contract costs qualify as costs to
fulfil a contract will be recognised as an asset to be amortised
on a systematic basis with the transfer to the customer of the
contract work to which the asset relates, while contract costs
that related to satisfy the performance obligation under the
contract are expensed as incurred. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are only recognised to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in

the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in
the period in which they are incurred. When it is probable
that estimated total contract costs will exceed estimated
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an

expense immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Revenue from contracts with customers

4, FESHBEBRE (2)

410 REEZFFESHNZWA (&)

(continued)

A receivable is recognised by the Group when the Group
becomes entitled to invoice based on the progress certificate
issued by the customer which represents the point in time at
which the right to consideration becomes unconditional for
which only the passage of time is required before payment is
due. A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the contract,
e.g. retention receivables. Contract assets are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional. A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays consideration before the Group recognises the

related revenue.

4.11 Income taxes

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before income tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mf\éﬂjﬁiﬁi M;J.%I

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESTHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
41 S8 (2

4.11 Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ - F_-FF+_-_F=+—AILEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.11 Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and

liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.

4.12 Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions

attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income and other gains or

losses”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mf\éﬂjﬁiﬁi M;J.%I

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4. FESTTHEBRE 2)

4.13 JhE

4.13 Foreign currency

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the

heading of translation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the translation reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to

profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRMRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.14 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other
than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short-term employee benefits are recognised in the

year when the employees render the related service.

Retirement benefits scheme contribution

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) are recognised as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in separate

trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. The Group's contributions to the scheme
are expensed as incurred are vested in accordance with the
scheme’s vesting scales. Where employees leave the scheme
prior to the full vesting of the employer’'s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to reduce the

contributions payable by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESTHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.15 Share-based payments 4.5 IRPAER 2R

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the

equity instruments at the grant date.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed

immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be

transferred to accumulated losses.

Share options granted to non-employees

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the service. The fair values of the goods or services received
are recognised as expenses (unless the goods or services

qualify for recognition as assets).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ - F_-FF+_-_F=+—AILEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.16 Impairment on property, plant and

equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an

indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable

amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are allocated
to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which
the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying

amount of the relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash

flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESTHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
416 1% BERRE ERAEE

4.16 Impairment on property, plant and

equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets other than goodwill

(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGUs.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
or the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group
of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRMRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.17 Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

4.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount

of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of

money is material).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESTHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
4.19 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the chief operating decision maker i.e. the most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various

lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.

4.20 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,

they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. When

inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
4.21 Related party transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary

and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member);

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.21 Related party transactions (continued)

(b)  (continued)

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an

entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services

to the Group or to the Group's parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services
or obligations between the Group and a related party,

regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close family members of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that

person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ - F_-FF+_-_F=+—AILEE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies which are
described in Note 4, the Directors are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if

the revision affects both current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

H T RERRZEEZRR

REAAREE 2 @5 RER (WK E4PT)
K Z2FARHBEEICEMRRENZE
ERBEREEFDHE - G5 RERZ
EFhFTEABRRIDERBECRNE M
BAREAZEBEAREL - BERERK
HZEHAAEMAR

et REABRRREEELEETRA -]
sHERHZ BRI TIRMERT il 5t BARS A RERR (1
ERTEFEZAR)  INETHERAR
HEmR (e ERE N BKRIE) -

UTREBARARZEEBRIENBSHR
A T EERRZHEMBERRER ZEFR
REGAOFEEEARBRATEER T —(E
MBFEcEERABRABAFELER

AL



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators that may affect
the asset value; (2) whether the carrying amount of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in
use, the net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the
assets belongs. Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the impairment

test.

Details of the impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets are disclosed in Notes 15 and 17

respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The management of the Group determines the estimated useful
lives and consequently the related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets. These
estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment. Management will increase
the depreciation charges when useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, it will write off or write down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned. Actual economic
lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review may
result in a change in useful lives and therefore the depreciation

expenses in future years.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The loss allowances for ECL of trade and other receivables are
based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates
in determining whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition and in calculating the amount of
ECL. The Group uses judgment in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation based on the
Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking information at the end of each reporting period. At the
end of each reporting period, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in current conditions and forward looking
information are analysed. The estimate of ECL is sensitive to the
changes in circumstances and of forecast conditions. Changes
in these assumptions can result in different levels of allowances.
The Group’s historical default experience and forecast conditions
may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about ECL on the Group's trade and other

receivables is disclosed in Note 21.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
4. The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined based
on value in use calculations. These calculations require the use
of estimates about future cash flows, growth rates and discount
rates. In the process of estimating expected future cash flows,
management makes assumptions about future revenues and profits.
These assumptions relate to future events and circumstances, the
actual results may vary and may cause a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of goodwill within the next financial year.
Determining the appropriate discount rate involves estimating the
appropriate adjustment for market risk and for asset specific risk

factors.

Construction contracts

As explained in accounting policy in Note 4, revenue recognition
on a project is dependent on management’s estimation of the
total outcome of the construction contracts, with reference to
the progress certificate issued. Significant judgment is required in
estimating the total outcome of the contract including the contract
revenue, contract costs and variation work which are based on
the Group's past experience and the nature of the contract work
undertaken. The Group reviews and revises the estimates of
contract revenue, contract costs and variation orders, prepared for

each construction contract as the contract progresses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ - F_-FF+_-_F=+—AILEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Valuation of share options

As mentioned in Note 29, the Group has granted share options
to eligible employees and other eligible participants of the Group
under the share option scheme of the Company. The directors have
used an option pricing model — Binomial Option Pricing Model
to determine the fair value of the options granted. The Binomial
Option Pricing Model requires the input of subjective assumptions,
such as risk-free rate, dividend yield, expected volatility and
expected term, to be made by the directors based on their best
estimate of the values in applying the model. Changes in these
variables and assumptions may result in changes in the fair value of

the options.

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

As at 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s unquoted equity
instruments at FVTPL amounting to approximately HK$35,851,000
(2019: nil) are measured at fair value with fair value being
determined based on significant unobservable inputs using
valuation techniques. Judgment and estimation are required in
establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the relevant
inputs thereof. Whilst the Group considers these valuations are
the best estimates, the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic has resulted
in greater market volatility and may cause further disruptions
to the investees’ businesses, which have led to higher degree
of uncertainties in respect of the valuations in the current year.
Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could result in
material adjustments to the fair value of these instruments. See

Note 37 for further disclosures.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker (the “CODM") that
are used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has five reportable segments. The segments are
managed separately as each business offers different products and
services and requires different business strategies. The following
summary describes the operations in each of the Group's reportable

segments:

(1) Sale of medical products (“Medical Products Business”);

(2) Sale of plastic moulding products (“Plastic Products Business”);

(3) Provision of construction services in building construction,
building maintenance and improvement works, project
management, renovation and decoration works (“Building

Contract Works Business”);
(4) Provision of money lending (“Money Lending Business”); and
(5) Investment in securities (“Securities Investment Business”).
Corporate revenue and expenses are not allocated to the operating
segments as they are not included in the measure of the segment

results that is used by the CODM for assessment of segment

performance.

6.
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mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ - F_-FF+_-_F=+—AILEE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by T AREERARE D HE D 2 WAR

reportable segment:

(a) Business segments

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z-_ZF+-A=+—HL#EF
=
Building
Medical Plastic Contract Money Securities
Products Products Works Lending  Investment
Business Business Business Business Business Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BFRE
BREREY ZBERER IRER HEXK BHREEW ot
TET TET TET TET TERT TER
Revenue from external customers REMBERHA 25,785 1,058 16,332 10,593 - 53,768
Timing of revenue recognition TR BB ]
At a point in time F-RH 25,785 1,058 - - - 26,843
Over time —BREREA - - 16,332 - - 16,332
25,785 1,058 16,332 - - 43,175
Reportable segment profit/(loss) ARE S
wH/ (B8) 1,098 85 (10,737)  (12,064) 1,030 (20,588)
Reportable segment assets ARENHEE 27,283 689 8,402 109,301 26,488 172,163
Reportable segment liabilities s HaE (28,410) (2,231) (3,924) (3,075) = (37,640)
Amounts included in the measure of 5t £ £ 5%
segment results or segment assets A EHEEFAZEH
Interest income FS - - - 1 - 1
Depreciation of property, mE BERBETE
plant and equipment (644) - (325) (62) - (1,031)
Impairment loss recognised HME BERRE
in respect of property, BRZREBE
plant and equipment - - (433) = = (433)
Impairment loss recognised REFEERR
in respect of intangible assets REEB#E - - (3,470) - - (3,470)
Impairment loss recognised under EHEEBERA
expected credit loss model, BTRRAE
net of reversal BE 1hER (335) (9 (3.542) (22,379 (28)  (26,289)
Additions to non-current assets REFRDEE
(excluded financial instruments) (TBREMBEIE) - - - 135 - 135
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DEHRE ()
(a) Business segments (continued) (a) ¥¥ 2 #)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT-NF+ZA=+—HLF
E
Building
Medical Plastic Contract Money Securities
Products Products Works Lending Investment
Business Business Business Business Business Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEE
BEEQER ZBEREY TRREK WEER BFREEHR fek
FAR  FAR AR FAR AR PER
Revenue from external customers REMBEFBA 17,612 1,374 37,294 11,427 - 67,707
Timing of revenue recognition TSR MR A B
At a point in time X 17,612 1,374 = = = 18,986
Over time —BERRA - = 37,294 = = 37,294
17,612 1,374 37,294 - - 56,280
Reportable segment (loss)/profit AREDH
(B#8),/ 85 (905) 45 (11,298 10,540 (10,942)  (12,650)
Reportable segment assets AREDHEE 3,931 143 22,003 132,760 21,056 179,893
Reportable segment liabilities REHBEE (4,649) (1,283) (9,149) (28,798) = (43,879)
Amounts included in the measure TESBEEINE
of segment results or BEHAZEE
segment assets
Interest income FIEHA - 1 = 3 = 4
Depreciation of property, mE BEREENE
plant and equipment (486) (261) (583) - - (1,330)
Impairment loss recognised HOE WERRE
in respect of property, BRZAREBE
plant and equipment - - (338) - - (338)
Impairment loss recognised REERACHERSR
in respect of goodwill - - (6,379) - - (6,379)
Impairment loss recognised HEVEERR
in respect intangible assets REBE - - (1,546) - = (1,546)
Impairment loss recognised under BHREEHRER
expected credit loss model, HTHRZAE
net of reversal B MRER - = (351) (625) = (976)
Additions to non-current assets REFRDEE
(excluded financial instruments) (TEERKIA) 1,267 - 1,332 - - 2,599
ERERERAT

-
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D EBIRE ()

(b) IHREDHBA -BFE -BE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6.

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities kREEBEZHIE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-TF —T-NF
FHET FHET
Revenue N
Reportable segment revenue AR & 5 ZRURA 53,768 67,707
Loss before income tax B P18 AT B 1B
Reportable segment loss ARG o EEE (20,588) (12,650)
Finance costs M%EA (3,064) (3,077)
Unallocated corporate income ROBE2EBRA 633 157
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBEE2EHRAX (12,522) (19,231)
Consolidated loss before income tax BETIS R AT4R & B8 (35,541) (34,801)
Assets BE
Segment assets DEBE E 172,163 179,893
Equity instrument at FVTPL FRBEREAREAVEZ
EmTHA 35,851 -
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 4,131 12,288
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEDBEE 611 636
Consolidated total assets REBEE 212,756 192,817
Liabilities B1E
Segment liabilities NEBE 37,640 43,879
Bond payables JE - & 55 33,666 30,666
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOEREBEE 9,357 11,985
Consolidated total liabilities REBARE 80,663 86,530
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment

(c)

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(continued)

Reportable segment profit/(loss) represents the profit/(loss)
attributable to each segment without allocation of central
administrative expenses, corporate directors’ emoluments
under the heading of “unallocated corporate expenses”,
corporate income and finance costs. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation

and performance assessment.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than

partial cash and cash equivalents and corporate assets.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than

bond payables and corporate liabilities.

Geographic information

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the goods delivered or services provided. The
geographical location of the non-current assets is based on

the physical and operating location of the assets.

e MBHRRME

HE-F-—FF+-A=1—HILEFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6.

(c)

(d)

Geographical information (continued)

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's

D EBIRE ()

(c) HEEH (#)

TR AEEREIBELKRAZ

revenue from external customers. DT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
—g-%F —T-a%
FE&T FAET

Asia Pacific 28 K &

— Hong Kong —BH 52,710 48,721
- other regions —H i@ - 42
Europe B M - 289
North and South America EBIEY) 1,058 18,655
53,768 67,707

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’'s
non-current assets.

TREJIAEEFERBDEEZ DM -

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-EF —E-NF

FHET FHET

Hong Kong BE 277 5,664
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") R ARKME ([FE]) 35,851 =
36,128 5,664

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total

d EEZEXF&EH

KEEBMARERKABRBIONZE

revenue of the Group are set out below: P2 WAER T :
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
—z=%% —E—hE
FET FET
Customer A — Building Contract BEPA-BFARBIIRER
Works Business 11,908 15,475
Customer B — Medical Products Business & FB—E&EE MmERS 5,675 =
Customer C — Medical Products Business & P C— B @7 - 17,612
Customer D — Building Contract EFPD-EFRBEIEER
Works Business - 12,492
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

e MBHRRME

REVENUE 7. WA
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
=i —ENF
FERT FHET
Revenue from contracts with customers ZEEMEREEREISHEEER
within the scope of HKFRS 15: ZREEFEHZBA:
Sales of medical products HEBEED 25,785 17,612
Sales of plastic moulding products HEBBEAER 1,058 1,374
Revenue from construction contracts BESHBA 16,332 37,294
43,175 56,280
Revenue from other sources: REEMIRZWA:
Loan interest income BEHFEBA 10,593 11,427
53,768 67,707

Transaction allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121
of HKFRS 15 to its construction contracts and sales contracts for
medical products and plastic moulding products such that the
Group does not disclose information about revenue that the Group
will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining performance
obligations under the construction contracts and sales contracts
of medical products and plastic moulding products that had an

original expected duration of one year or less.

BEEFEHNRTEASEEN

Xt D

AEEDBBEEAWBEREEREISHS
BN EREER EERANERESY
NEBEBRERREBRAERHEERL
NHASEEY EREREEAEEREITE
EENARBREMREBERAERKEE
AR (RFEABRE —FHUARNHKT
BHOEERSERKERZ KR EF -

EFRERERQTF
2020 F3;

HE-F-—FF+-A=1—HILEFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS OR 8. Htlhzm R EMBAREE
LOSSES
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—g-%% —E—hE
FHET FHET
Exchange (loss)/gain, net BN (&8), M FE (196) 59
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BERKEZERE
plant and equipment - (133)
Realised gain on change in fair value of BIEEBERECZAAEBEED
held-for-trading investments B &R W 32 -
Gain/(loss) on change in fair value of RIEBEREZ AR BHEEZD
held-for-trading investments s/ (B18) 1,058 (10,941)
Gain on change in fair value of equity BRBREAARBAENEZ
instruments at FVTPL BRTEz A AnEBEEPHNKS 202 -
Interest income R B A 1 5
Government grants BT #6 Bh 785 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RRB ARz W 62 -
Gain on early termination of lease REZRIEEHEZE 2 K=
arrangement 12 =
COVID-19-related rent concessions COVID-194EFTH & E R 77 -
Others EAfb 1,074 556
3,107 (10,454)
During the current year, the Group recognised government RAFE  ANEBE R EACovid-1948 B
grants of in respect of Covid-19-related subsidies which relates BEMO T BE) - REREBBFERAX
to Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong BmEHNRMEEFSNEE -BIEEEZ
government as a support. There were no unfulfilled conditions or ERNRMBERERIGHHHAEE

contingencies relating to these government grants.

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MBEH
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-EF —E-NEF
FHET FHET
Interest on bond payables FERE T & 3,000 3,000
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAGMNEXH 64 77
3,064 3,077
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

10. (RFT GBI B 1R
AEEZBASHABARTNG GIA)

10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

The Group’s loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting): TH)&IE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—g-%4 —E—hE
FH5 FHR
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) BT A (BIEEEME)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits —%He IERAEMBER 6,888 13,573
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions — — 3R K4 F 5F 2| 3 228 288
- Share-based payment expenses —PARR D R BB 2 SR X 5,068 2,505
12,184 16,366
Depreciation of property, plant and ME WEREE
equipment (including right-of-use assets) (BIEEREEE)TE 1,038 1,349
Auditor’s remuneration % ERD B & 450 500
Expenses relating to short-term leases and AR BHERKER
low-value assets BEZRAX 115 660
Impairment loss recognised in respect of ME BERXEERZ
property, plant and equipment B E 18 433 338
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HEERRZBEEE
goodwill - 6,379
Impairment loss recognised in respect of MEFEERRABERERE
intangible assets 3,470 1,546
Impairment loss recognised/(reversed) BHEEEEENXET
under expected credit loss model on HR/ (BE)ZREESRE
— trade receivables — B 5 RERKRIA 1,339 353
— retention receivables —ERRES (9) (2)
— loan receivables — R E R 22,379 625
— deposits and other receivables —ik& REMEWKIA 2,580 =
26,289 976
Share-based payment expenses AR BER 2R
(other than staff costs) (TEEEIRA) - 2,504
Cost of inventories sold EEFEXA
(included in cost of sales and services) (FFASEE KRR A) 25,919 14,501
Cost of services rendered FAT 12 44 AR 75 A 7R
(included in cost of sales and services) (FFASHE KRG A) 14,549 34,312
ERERERAR

5
2020 F3}
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11.INCOME TAX CREDIT M. FEHER

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-EF —E-NEF

FHET FHET

Deferred tax credit — current year (Note 25) EEFIER R —ARNFE (f1:#25) 572 255
Income tax credit Frisfif 572 255

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years. No Hong Kong Profits Tax was
provided for both years as members of the Group did not derive
any estimated assessable profits or had sufficient tax losses brought
forward to offset against the estimated assessable profits for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years. No PRC Enterprise Income
Tax was provided for both years as members of the Group did not
derive any estimated assessable profits.

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

EANCHDEMBEFE 2GR
w216 5% E-ARAEEZHKE R
AREEZZT_TFR_T-—NF+=A
=t+—ALEFELERESEAIEERR
s A B T B 7 B Y A B TH B 18 DAUIK
S AT PE SR Bl i ) - WU R M 4R 8 I 4 AE
HBEAMESHEE-

REBFBECEMETE ([REREHIE])
REEREBEAERGH RMEFE -
BB AR ZHERL% HRAEEZ
A B A R I B BUS A fA fh 5T AR BE A
U P M| 6 2 0 M A L P B S PTAS
=

AEEMEHELEGEBREREMEE
Was Rk Z BRI BRI B RN T

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
= 3 —T-hF
FERT FHET
Loss before income tax B BT 15 %4 Al B 18 (35,541) (34,801)
Tax calculated at the rates applicable to REBREER ZERBE
the jurisdiction concerned TEZFIE (5.791) (5,684)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR 2 2 B 7%
tax purpose 148 3,079
Tax effect of income not taxable for HBAERBA 2 7%
tax purpose (359) )
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERNEEBZHBELE 4,771 2,778
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BALAAERTIEBREZ
previously not recognised ik A - (491)
Tax effect of temporary differences RERERUZE I NBEEE
not recognised 659 65
Income tax credit FriefiE e (572) (255)
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12.LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

12.8REE

The computation of the basic loss per share is based on the

following data:

(a) BREXEIE

BREREEDERATEIEAE:

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—B-ZF —E-hF
FHERT FHT
Loss E#E
Loss for the year for the purpose of R EBREABEME 2
computation of basic loss per share FAREE (34,969) (34,546)
‘000 ‘000
TR Fit
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of RAESREABEME Z
ordinary shares for the purpose of Tk 2 hniE 8
computation of basic loss per share 2,045,102 1,862,679

Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share was the same as basic loss per share

because there was no potential dilutive ordinary share in issue

for both years.

The Company’s outstanding share options as at 31 December

2020 and 2019 were not taken into account as they had an

anti-dilutive effect for both years which would result in a

reduction in the loss per share.

(b) BERBEEIE

RmEFEEYEDBHITRABEHES
B2EBER MERBERERER
EAEEAR -

YEFRARFRZE_ZEFR_-F
—NFF+ZA=+—HZHERTEZ
BRE FERERMEFEAGR
BERE mEREREERD -

ERERERAT
2020 F 3k
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13.EEM <
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the five (2019: five) AEECHNSEMNER (ZZE—LF HR)
Directors during the years were as follows: EExazMenmT:
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE_Z_ZTHF+-_A=1+—HLEFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances Share-based benefits
Directors’ and benefits payments scheme
fees in kind expense contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
H& RHR LRGP AER RIKER
EENe BRI & PASENED B @zt
FTERT FTERT FTERT TET FTET
Executive directors BiTES
Zhang Hengxin RTE - 240 525 6 771
Jia Minghui EfE - 240 525 11 776

Independent non-executive BIFHTES

directors
Chan Tsz Keung C=E: 120 - - - 120
Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon ENCE 42 210 - 525 - 735
Guo Zhenhui BiEE 96 - - - 9
Total gt 426 480 1,575 17 2,498
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

13.EEME )
BE-ZT— NG+ -A=+—BLEE

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits benefits scheme
fees in kind contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e EUR RARRA
BEEME EYH = FHEIH K gt
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Executive directors HITES
Zhang Hengxin KT E - 240 - 240
Jia Minghui EmRE - 240 12 252
Independent non-executive BUYFHTES
directors
Chan Tsz Keung (C=E: 120 - - 120
Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon ENCE) 216 - - 216
Guo Zhenhui MiEE 96 — — 96
Total st 432 480 12 924

During the year, certain share options were granted to directors,
in respect of their services to the Group under the share option
scheme of the Company. Details of the share option scheme are set

out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors, as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation

for loss of office for both years.

No directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for both

years.

Except disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company or any
subsidiaries of the Company was a party and in which a director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

REAFE REAQXBBEREFE CHE
ERETAKREZRBAREREETE
- BRBERIET S ZFBTERNGEAM
TEERK P29 ©

PR B F 2 A S B 30 M A B SN AE A
e EREREMARNEERNMARE
B 2 SR A SRR (E

RMEFEE MEEERBHR B NEML
i< -

BiRa M BMRMIAIBMMEBEIN RF
R F REAEE AR B RE KR
NREARETVESERAMERFEKRT
SNEAEEXBERNEMR S 2
RE# -

EFRERERQTF
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14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 1A EEEESHEMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, rEBREEaFMZALH BE=%
three (2019: Nil) were the directors whose emoluments are (ZE—NE ZR)ES ZFES M
included in the disclosure in Note 13 above. The emoluments of the SR EXHIFIBEBZE - B TITWBEAL(ZE
remaining two (2019: five) individuals were as follows: —NF:RB)ZMemT:
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EZEF —E-NF
FHET FAET
Salaries and other emoluments Fe kAN 1,112 7,035
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RORAE FIFT B 5 36 90
1,148 7,125
Their emoluments were within the following bands: REZHMENFTIIEE:
2020 2019
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
—E-EF —ET-NF
AB A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007% 7T 2 4
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001,% 7T £4,000,000/8 7T - 1
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid RAEFEERN REBLESSEANME
individuals, as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or FRERSTMHZ AL EAEREMNAR
as compensation for loss of office for both years. 5 S 50 N A A £R [ I 2 BE RN 3 1 7 ek
fE-
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

e MBHRRME

HE-F-—FF+-A=1—HILEFE

15. 9% BEKRRE

Plant and
machinery
Furniture, and office Motor Right-of-use
fixtures equipment vehicles assets Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BR-EER
BERBE BRARE RE EREEE @t
FHEL TR FHET TR TR
Cost 2%
As at 31 December 2018 RZZ-\E+_A=+—H 7,731 1,780 2,839 - 12,350
Recognition upon initial BRERBBMBREER
application of HKFRS 16 F16H R - - - 664 664
Adjusted balance as at RZE-NF-A—-HBZ
1 January 2019 TRREHR 7,731 1,780 2,839 664 13,014
Additions NE = = 350 2,249 2,599
Disposals HE - = (2,060) = (2,060)
Written off s = (87) = = (87)
As at 31 December 2019 and  M-Z—NE+-A=+—8
as at 1 January 2020 k=—Z-ZF-A—-A 7,731 1,693 1,129 2,913 13,466
Additions NE - - - 135 135
Termination of lease BIFRERH
arrangement - - - (1,267) (1,267)
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZB-ZFE+-A=+—H 7,731 1,693 1,129 1,781 12,334
Accumulated depreciation R EREE
and impairment
As at 31 December 2018 R_E-N\F+-A=+—-H 7,731 1,491 2,209 - 11,431
Recognition upon initial BRERBAMBREER
application of HKFRS 16 E165 I HER - - 18 18
Adjusted balance as at RZE-NE-A-BZ
1 January 2019 BRHELES 7,731 1,491 2,209 18 11,449
Depreciation e - 131 364 854 1,349
Impairment loss recognised ERAREER = 46 103 189 338
Disposals & - = (1,777) = (1,777)
Written off i sH - (87) = - (87)
As at 31 December 2019 and  R=Z-NF+=-A=+—H
as at 1 January 2020 k=T-ZTF—-A—H 7,731 1,581 899 1,061 11,272
Depreciation e - 59 35 94 1,038
Impairment loss recognised ERAREER - 52 195 186 433
Termination of lease BIFRERH
arrangement - - - (686) (686)
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZB-Z5+=-A=+-8H 7,731 1,692 1,129 1,505 12,057
Carrying amounts RHEE
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-ZF+-A=+—-H - 1 - 276 277
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=1+—A = 112 230 1,852 2,194
SRERERAR

-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ - F_-FF+_-_F=+—AILEE

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group leases various office for its operations. Lease agreements
are typically made for fixed periods ranging from 2 to 3 years.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable. The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants and the leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, an impairment loss of
approximately HK$433,000 (2019: HK$338,000) on property, plant
and equipment that relates to the segment of Building Contract
Works Business, which constitutes a CGU, has been recognised as
a result of an impairment assessment made by the management as
detailed in Note 16(i).

GOODWILL

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the CGU that is expected to benefit from that
business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31
December 2020 and 2019 relates to business units acquired in prior

years, as further explained below.

15.

16.

ME -BERSZE 2

AEBDREZEARAZERTEYL HAEW
HBPRNT2EIF2EEHRET LM
ERZBEENBEAEZ BRESET
(] 1 3Kk R AR 1 o 0 B E PR & ERRR I 5T 1 T
A ECHEAR 2 R AEERAS AN
EEWEESLHRGRTHR - HEW
FIREAMNHOE REEETESRAER
RPER -

HE_ZT-_ZTF+_A=+—HLEFE"
EEREWEFABTIRER (B —ER
SEEEM)ETRENG (FBERWZE
16()) UL - EEMBEZME BE KRR

85 7 5208 (B 5 18 49433,000/8 7T (—Z— N,
£ : 338,000/ 7T) ©

SR
ENEeHPRBZEEARERSER

EHEEBAHPI R REELEL
BEXR-_Z-_ZFR-Z—NF+_A
St-BrEEEEABEFEREY
BEREM M XA — S

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
—z-2% EE
FHET FHET
Cost %S
As at 1 January and as at 31 December R—A—BR+=ZA=+—H
(Notes (i) & (ii)) (B aE@) & i) 77,558 77,558
Accumulated impairment losses ZitREFE
As at 1 January w—H—H (77,558) (71,179)
Impairment loss recognised in the year FENERZBBERE (M)
(Note (i) - (6,379)
As at 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H (77,558) (77,558)
Carrying amount as at 31 December RTZRA=+—HZEEE = =

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

16. GOODWILL (continued)

Notes:

@)

Building Contract Works Business

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, goodwill of approximately
HK$10,196,000 relates to the Building Contract Works Business
unit, a CGU, acquired as part of the acquisition of ACE Engineering
Limited (“ACE Engineering”) in 2016.

The recoverable amount of the CGU, has been determined using
cash flow projections to calculate value in use based on estimates
and financial budgets approved by the directors. These projections
cover a five-year period, and have been discounted using a pre-tax
discount rate of 13.02% (2019: 11.60%). The cash flows beyond
that five-year period have been extrapolated using a growth rate of
3% (2019: 3%).

All of the assumptions and estimations involved in the preparation
of the cash flow projection including budgeted gross margin,
discount rate and growth rate are determined by the management
of the Group based on past performance, experience and their
expectation for future market development.

Based on the assessment, the recoverable amount of the CGU
is determined to zero (2019: HK$16,994,000). The carrying
amount of the CGU has been reduced to the recoverable amount
and accordingly, an impairment loss of approximately nil (2019:
HK$6,379,000), HK$433,000 (2019: HK$338,000) (Note 15)
and HK$3,470,000 (2019: HK$1,546,000) (Note 17) has been
recognised on goodwill, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets respectively in the current year. The impairment
loss recognised mainly due to the performance of this business
segment not matching up to management’s expectations in 2020
and the business unit's expected performance in 2021 and beyond
based on the latest information available. Much of the problem
arose due to decrease in awards of projects in both public and
private sectors, under the more stringent and competitive market
environment of the building construction and maintenance industry
during the year. The continuous curtailment of gross profit margin
as a result of decrease in awards of projects in the private sector
which yielded higher margins in price as well as continuous rise
in subcontracting costs resulting from increased labour costs also
contributed to the underperformed result of the business segment
for the year. The budget/forecast has been revised downward
accordingly.

0]

16. & (%)
B :

BFABITRRER

RZE_TEFR-_ZT—NF+A
=+—8- Z’J10196000/§7EZF‘55§73
HRZZE-—RNFEARBLHTIRREE

RAF ([R@EIR])z OB
ZEBFEREBIRER (R—EREEL
BR)BEM-

ReEEEMN 2B SEDRIFE
ERMME A RMBBEENAR2
mMEBANECHEBEET - Z5EA
MERAFEHME BEMA13.02% (=%
—NF:11.60% ) 2 BiATALIR KALIR -
BEAFHBz2RSRERHA3% (=
T—NF:3%)BRREZ-

REBRTREBAS L ZMERRK
mEt (RRAEENE BREINER
R)HASEEEERBRAERR
KEMREHARMHER ZEHM
BEE -

REFEHE BeELENZAKE S
HEERT(ZZE—N%:16,994,000
B) ReELBEMN2EAAEDH
BEARESE BEREAFEER
HE - VE BEEAZEBEURERE
ENRBERBEEENT(ZZT—A
% :6,379,000% 7T ) + 433,000 7T
—Z=— A4 :338,0008 L) (st
15) 3,470,000 (Z T — L 5F:
1,546,000 L) (MI3E17) BB &
AIBER BRBRENEEARLER
PHNEREEEREEHN T _TF
WIEEBAF RILEFEMR T =—
FRZENEHRBAB-MEEER
RERNEFRERBBTENTISER
BASERE RRF SRR REAR
RALEIMPIBHMIBE R -MARE
BABEEREORLETIEHEE R
DRSS BEBERRAES TRA ERME
BEA EMERERNERZERR T
HRAMEEB O BFANEERNE
,*Eoéi&wt'fﬁﬁ/i‘ﬁi/ﬂlamﬁ{’ﬁﬁ?s}&"
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

16. GOODWILL (continued)

Notes. (continued)

(i) Medical Devices Business

16. B8 (#)

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, goodwill of approximately
HK$67,362,000 relates to the Medical Devices Business unit

acquired as part of the acquisition of the Titron Group in

2011, as defined and detailed in the Company's circular dated

12 August 2011. Owing to the significant and continuous losses

incurred by this business unit in prior years, all of the goodwill of

approximately HK$67,362,000 had been impaired during the year

ended 31 December 2014.

Wit (&
(i) BEREED
R-ZF_FTFER-_F-NFTZ=A

= +—B8 ®%%67,362,0008 L H
BMIEAR-ZE——FHBEEREE
—WMOTKE BRSEEBEM (E
ERFBRARAIBHA-T——&
NATZBZBH) ERBEFEZ
EBEMBESSEREEE  BRER
—E-NMFE+-A=+—RALEES
E B #467,362,000/8 0 H IR R ME ©

2 5
17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B &EE
2020 2019
ZBIEF —E-NE
Contractor Contracts Contractor
registrations backlog registrations Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR M REKEHR AR gt
FEx FHET FHET FHET
Cost oS
As at 1 January w—HA—H 5,016 2,786 5,016 7,802
Written off HisH - (2,786) - (2,786)
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H 5,016 - 5,016 5,016
Accumulated amortisation R BHERAE
and impairment
As at 1 January w—A—H 1,546 2,786 - 2,786
Impairment loss HEEE 3,470 = 1,546 1,546
Written off g5 - (2,786) - (2,786)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8 5,016 - 1,546 1,546
Carrying amounts as at 31 December R+=A=+-—-RAZKEE - - 3,470 3,470
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

ACE Engineering is a registered contractor in several government/
public organisations and only registered contractors are eligible to
obtain contracts from these government bodies. These contractor
registrations include the registration as an authorised building
contractor under the sub-category of Maintenance Works in the
category of Building Work in Group M1 approved by the Hong
Kong Housing Authority. In general, these registrations require
certain criteria to be met which effectively limit the number of
new entries in the list of authorised contractors. The contractor
registrations are recognised as intangible assets with indefinite
useful life and measured initially at cost and subsequently measured

at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

The contracts backlog represents the contracts on hand of ACE
Engineering on the date of acquisition and is recognised as
intangible assets with finite useful life. The contracts backlog is
measured initially at cost and subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
The contracts backlog was amortised over the period up to the
completion of each of the contracts. The contracts backlog were

written off during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The contractor registrations relate to the segment of Building
Contract Works Business which constitutes a CGU, and have been
assessed for impairment as detailed in Note 16(i). Based on the
impairment assessment performed by management, an impairment
loss of approximately HK$3,470,000 (2019: HK$1,546,000) has
been recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020.

7. BEEE (&)

RETRER/ETBRRHEMEE 2 EMA
2E mEEMAZATATERABRS
BRREESAHN ZSAERHEMER
AMAEAFEZREGEHAEZCETIRER
PIRE TR EMATE TR EEAGER -
—RME REEM—RATEETHRE:
/A BE A5 2 2K R I 38 7] A2 7 4 i o
REZHE #EBEMIERSEER
ERFHZBVEE NTERAFE B
BRIBKAR R EERE -

AEREHTIARKBEPRLRATEZF
BLEANMERRAERERFHZER
BE -REMAENNTRAATE BRIR
AR Rt B R R R EBEFTE- K
TREHNRBER QTR - RS-
RBE-_Z-NF+ZA=+—HLEFE"
RITRE L E S

AEEAMEETABIRERS B (Z
SHEXN—BAREELBM)AH B
AT E TS (R F16G)5F i) - BRIk
ERBETZRENG BE_T_TF
TZRA=T-BLEFEERRREEEL
3,470,000/ 7T ( =& — /L4 : 1,546,000/

) ©

EFRERERQTF
2020 F3;
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

18. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 18. ZEBEREAAEBEIEKZ
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS ERZTH
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-EF —ET-NF
FRx FHR
Unlisted equity instruments FEmMERTE 35,851 =
The unlisted equity instruments represent the Group’s equity LMD TEEREERN T B AKE
interests in a private entity which loacted in PRC. B AR A A 2 e
At the end of the reporting period, equity instruments at FVTPL are RBEAR BEBEZRAIAEBEIERZ
measured at fair value. Details of the fair value measurement are BETADEAABENZE-EEARE
set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements. B E2FBERGRE T BmMERWEI7 -
19.INVENTORIES 19. 78
2020 2019
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—EZEF —T-NF
FH&T FAET
Raw materials R AR 23 23
Finished goods BURK 11 11
34 34
20. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 20 EEERE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-EF —E-NF
FET FHT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REB LM ZRAES
at fair value BAREE 23,969 14,277
The fair values of these investments are determined with reference ZEREBEZRARBEIDZBRHIATATRK
to the quoted market closing prices on the Stock Exchange. mEEBE-
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 1. EG R EMEWRRIE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-EF —E-NF
FH5 FHR
Trade receivables from contracts with RERFAHNZE S RWGKIEA
customers (Note (i) (Htaz@) 29,117 8,234
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (2,038) (699)
27,079 7,535
Retention receivables from contracts with REBEFPEHAZEBRES
customers (Note (i) (Bt i) 2,801 5,239
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (18) (27)
2,783 5,212
Loan receivables (Note (iii)) FEME Z (KT aE (i) 135,467 136,582
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (26,257) (3,878)
109,210 132,704
Deposits, prepayment and other receivables &% * T8 VA & & b fE UL A 9,422 15,103
Total trade and other receivables B 5 R EAMERFIE B 148,494 160,554
As at 1 January 2019, trade receivables arising from contracts RZE-NEF—HA—RB BFEHNEED
with customers (before allowance for credit losses) amounted to BEoRRFBE(NKREEBEREGEN) L
approximately HK$15,440,000. 15,440,000/ 7T °
ERERERAT

5
2020 F3}
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ - F_-FF+_-_F=+—AILEE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days (2019:
30 to 90 days) to its trade customers. The ageing analysis of trade
receivables (net of allowance for credit losses) based on invoice

date is as follows:

1. EFREMEWRE &)
B 5 -

U]

REBGETHESEPZTHAREE
HB30E90K (ZZF— NLF 30290
R)-BHRWHE (KR EEEEE
BIREZAME D ZRESMET

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

—BE_ZF —E-hF

FET FHT

0 to 90 days 0£90K 17,652 3,088
91 to 180 days 91£ 180K 9,145 298
Over 180 days 180K E 282 4,149
27,079 7,535

Retention receivables are derived from the Building Contract Works
Business and are interest-free and recoverable at the end of the
retention period of individual construction contracts ranging from

3 months to 1 year.

Loan receivables represent outstanding principals and interest
receivables arising from the Money Lending Business of the Group.
All of the loan receivables are entered with contractual maturity
within 12 months. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its loan receivables in order to minimise credit risk by reviewing the

borrowers’ financial positions.

The loan receivables are interest-bearing at rates mutually agreed
between the contracting parties, ranging from 6% to 12% per
annum (2019: 6% to 12% per annum). All of the loan receivables

were unsecured as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group trade and
retention receivables (net of allowance for credit losses) balance
are debtors with aggregates carrying amounts of approximately
HK$890,000 (2019: HK$4,450,000), which are past due at the end
of the reporting period. Out of the past due balances, HK$951,000
(2019: HK$1,481,000) (net of allowance for credit losses) has been
past due 180 days or more and is not considered as in default
because of no recent history of default and the directors are in

opinion of these balances are still considered as collectible.

Trade receivables are assessed based on provision matrix, except
for trade receivables with gross carrying amounts of approximately
HK$1,707,000 (2019: nil), which are credit-impaired, that are
assessed individually. The Group performed impairment assessment
for the trade receivables equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is not further distinguished between the Group's different

customer bases.

The following table provides information about the Group's
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are assessed
collectively based on provision matrix except for those who are

assessed individually or credit-impaired:

e MBHRRME

HE-F-—FF+-A=1—HILEFE

1. EFREMEWRE &)
Misx: (&)

(iv)

R-EBE-_ZE+_-_A=+—H0 &&
BE5ERZERERRES (0B
EEFBRB)NEROEREREY
890,000/ JT (= Z — S 4F : 4,450,000
P IT) B FE L BR X 52 B I BRI
SHIRE @ - mHi e - 951,000
B (ZZT—LF 1,481,000/ L)
(MR EEEEERE) 2 @180 5k
FHEARBTEENTLE ESRA
ZEEBRMAT FUE - IR ERED
BH -

B SR BRBEERTG RES
JE Ut SR 1B AR TE 48 %8 491,707,000 7T (=
T-hE: %) (HEHEEERE)E
BEEIN AEBIZREE R 2HEH
EEEFENSBHEETE S BIRKIEN
B R T AR B R A E H TR AR
EEB-BEAEENBTIEEBEL
B TRAASEPHBEEEEENER
BERBEEZR AR EREBRBMRR
HRERERAE-—TESTRANE
FEeg-

TEREHEBASEREREERES
BihzEZRERBGERBRNE
ko BB AR EEREERN:

EFRERERQTF
2020 F3;
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

21.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. ES R HEMBWRIE )
Notes: (continued) MizE: (&)
(iv) (continued) (ivy (%)
2020
—BCEF
Gross Gross
carrying carrying
amount - amount -
Expected loss Trade Retention Loss
rate receivables receivables allowance
B 5 Rl EURRES
EHEEE BERTEE BERMEE BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT FER
Not past due K 460 B 1.2% 26,512 2,801 341
Less than 3 months past due BEDR=1E F 1.0% 409 - 4
3 to 6 months past due BME= =N {E A 1.2% 245 = 3
Over 6 months past due BAEASME A LA E 0.4% 244 = 1
898 - 8
Total want 27,410 2,801 349
2019
—E-NF
Gross Gross
carrying carrying
amount — amount —
Expected loss Trade Retention Loss
rate receivables receivables allowance
E 5 W EIE FEWR E &
TEEAE IR X 4RRRTEE RERMEE EEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FHET
Not past due SRiaER 0.5% 3,101 5,239 43
Less than 3 months past due wEI LR =1EA 0.8% 119 = 1
3 to 6 months past due BE==NEA 7.5% 3,081 - 230
Over 6 months past due BHEANE A £ 23.4% 1,933 S 452
5,133 - 683
Total BET 8,234 5,239 726
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

(continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL of trade
receivables that has been recognised under the simplified approach:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BisE: (&)
vy (%)

e MBHRRME

HE-F-—FF+-A=1—HILEFE

1. EFREMEWRE &)

TREINRE(ORERNE 5 RUK
HEHEMEEERZHEN:

Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(not credit- ECL (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2 HITEH 2 HTEH
R EREA
(REERHE) (EERE) #@Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FHET
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF—HA—H 489 = 489
Impairment loss recognised BRAREESE 353 = 353
Impairment loss reversed BREREESE (143) = (143)
As at 31 December 2019 and RZE-NF+ZA=+—H8BRK
as at 1 January 2020 —ZZE-A—H 699 = 699
Impairment loss recognised BEHERREEE 329 1,306 1,635
Impairment loss reversed EREREEE (296) = (296)
Transfer to lifetime ECL ERE2HEHEEEE
(credit-impaired) (ZERME) (401) 401 -
As at 31 December 2020 RZZ_ZTF+_R=+—H 331 1,707 2,038

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL of
retention receivables that has been recognised under the simplified

TR LA TR AR W R E
2HBEREEBREDHR

approach:

Lifetime ECL
(not
credit-impaired)
2HEHEERE
(REERE)
HK$'000
FET
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE—-NF—H—H 29
Impairment loss reversed B2 BB EEE ()

As at 31 December 2019 and as at 1 January 2020 RZE-NF+ZA=+—8BK
—E-FTF—H—H 27
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 2
Impairment loss reversed EREREEE (1)
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZTE+-_A=+—H 18
ERERERAT

5
2020 F3}
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ - F_-FF+_-_F=+—AILEE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(v)

Loan receivables represent outstanding principals and interest
receivables arising from the Money Lending Business of the Group.
All of the loan receivables are entered with contractual maturity
within 12 months. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its loan receivables in order to minimise credit risk by reviewing the

borrowers’ financial positions.

The loan receivables are interest-bearing at rates mutually agreed
between the contracting parties, ranging from 6% to 12% per
annum (2019: 6% to 12% per annum). All of the loan receivables

were unsecured as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Loss allowance for expected credit loss has been made on an
individual basis under general approach. The movement in ECL for

loan receivables during the year is as follows:

1. EGREMEWRE )

Bisr: (&)
v RBUREREREEREEBELZAR

BERS LEWFHE -rERKERZ
BHHHBEARIEAR - AEEBN
BBREMHERAN 2B BN R E
FEW B TR 2 BRI B BRI E R

BERIE-

EWERTIRAHN T EREREZF
Kt B FRENTF6%EN2%R (ZF
—NFFFNENF6%E%) R
ToEFR T -NEFETZA=+—
H -FEERKERYAEER.

HHEEBRZBRBECE —KRZE
A fh 2 B B EEEH - REFE AR ER
ZHEBEEBEZEHTIHIRMT

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
12m ECL impaired) impaired) Total
2HFES 2HFEH
+=EAEH FEFE FEFE
EEER (RIEEERME) (E8RE) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FAET
As at 1 January 2019 RZZ-NF—-HA—H 3,253 - - 3,253
Impairment loss recognised ERRAEER 625 = = 625
As at 31 December 2019 and RZZE-NE+=ZA=+—8
as at 1 January 2020 kR=—E-F4—HA—H 3,878 = = 3,878
Impairment loss recognised ERRREESR 101 3,031 20,330 23,462
Impairment loss reversed BEERESR (915) (168) = (1,083)
Transfer to lifetime ECL ERZ2HREHEEEE
(not credit-impaired) (REERE) (1,723) 1,723 S =
Transfer to lifetime ECL ERZ2HRHEEER
(credit-impaired) (EERE) (1,168) - 1,168 =
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZF+-A=+—AH 173 4,586 21,498 26,257
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vi)

The Group's other deposits, prepayment and other receivables

represented the following amounts as at the end of the reporting

1. ESZREMEWRE 2
Misx: (&)

(vi)

AEBRZEfRe BENFEARELMLRE
WHRERRE MR 2 TII5E -

period.

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—BC-8F —E-hF
FTHET FET
Prepayment TEfTRIE 828 1,067
Deposits Z& 2,921 7,367
Other receivables H i E YR IE 5,673 6,669
9,422 15,103

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group’s deposits amount RZZTZTF+-_A=+—8"

of approximately HK$2,542,000 (2019: HK$6,779,000) which
represented deposit placed with securities broker for the trading of

investment securities.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's other
receivables mainly represented payment of expenses on behalf of

subcontractors.

The following table show reconciliation on ECL of deposits and

other receivables under general approach:

%@2,542,0007&%(:§—n¢:
6,779,000 L) 2 KB AREE 2
Re ZRBEERREZFLRFITFRHE
FEsL s iES -

RZE_ZER —LE+=H
=t—B X&H @TE%ZTAIEEE
BEROBEXNZ

TREJR-—REERNIRE R EAM
RWHENEACEEBELER:

Lifetime
ECL (credit-
12m ECL impaired) Total
2HEE
+=@EAES FEEE
FEEE (EERME) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
As at 1 January 2019, R-_E—NF—H—H8-
as at 31 December 2019 and —E-NF+=-A=+—8H
as at 1 January 2020 ;E=_Z-_FTF—H—H - = =
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 180 2,400 2,580
As at 31 December 2020 RZZE-_TF+=-A=+—H 180 2,400 2,580
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22.

23.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2.BERBEEEY

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

—EC-EE —ET-NF

FET FAT

Cash at bank and on Hand RITAFHERE 4,131 12,288

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances and cash held
by the Group. The bank balances carry interest at market rates
which range from 0.001% to 0.5% (2019: 0.001% to 0.5%) per

annum.

Renminbi (“RMB”) is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign

exchange business.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

ReRBReEEVEEAEERFA 2RIT
BARBE - RITEBRRMBEENENT
0.001EZE05E (=T —NF:0001EZE
0.5E)&H & -

AR (AR T mABKEME
¥ BREPEZINEERIGOIMGE &
ERMEEERE AEBEEEEBER
RETINEEB Z|RITEARBLBKE
fE -

23. BEZ REMENRKE

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

—B-Z2F —T-hF

FHET FHET

Trade payables B S EMNRIEA 28,972 6,892
Retention payables B RE® 1,864 2,557
Contract liabilities EHEE - 50
Accruals and other payables JE &t R I8 [ E M FE < /I8 15,742 43,715
46,578 53,214
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables presented
based on invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

23.EFREMENSRE &)

REEHR EFERNFEZERAHE
S Z BREC D ATAAT

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

—B-2F —ET-hF

FERT FHET

Within 3 months =EAR 1,392 4,607
Over 3 months but within 6 months iR =R AERSEA A 25,361 200
Over 6 months 8 iR 7 ME A 2,219 2,085
28,972 6,892

The average credit period on trade purchases is 30 to 90 days
(2019: 30 to 90 days).

Contract liabilities represented payments received in advance that
were related to sales of goods not yet delivered to customers arising
from the Medical Products Business and Plastic Products Business.
The Group recognises this amount as revenue when the goods are
delivered to the customers.

As at 1 January 2019, contract liabilities amounted to approximately
HK$715,000.

For the contract liabilities as at 31 December 2019, the entire
balances are recognised as revenue during the year ended 31
December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, included in the Group's
accruals and other payables are an amount due to Titron Group
Holdings Limited (“TGHL") of approximately HK$1,700,000 and
the cash consideration of HK$7,500,000 payable to the Vendors
of Titron Group (as defined and detailed in the Company’s circular
dated 12 August 2011) arising from the acquisition of Titron Group
in 2011. TGHL was one of the Vendors of Titron Group. Titron
Group is principally engaged in the Medical Products Business and
the Plastic Moulding Business. One of the shareholders of TGHL,
Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin, was a former shareholder and the former
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company. The amounts
were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand as at 31
December 2020 and 2019.

HHRE 2P EEHA0ZOKR(ZF
— L :30890K) °

EHABREBRERRTREBERR
BZHARINTFTEPZERBEERM A
WHIE-FERXNTEPR AEEER
ZEFEBA

RZF-NF-A—RB GHNAEEBEAAR
715,000 7T ©

BRZE-NAFTZA=ZT—HWEHE
BEME 2HERRBEE_ZT_TF+—
A=t —BLEFETERBKA-

RZBEZTFR_T-NF+ZRA=+—
B AEBZEFREREMENKERS
& —Z FE I Titron Group Holdings Limited
([TGHL ) Z $X 3B #91,700,0005%8 7T & it —
T——FHEEREER (EERFBRR
ARAEBHAE-ZTE——FNAR+=-HZBE
H)EEZENEREEE I 2ESRE
7,500,000/ T > TGHLAER £ E 2 H &
— B EREEFENEBREERE
BREBEAERE - TGHLZ — BB RER
MAERBAARABRRRAEFERESL
"KB-RN B _FTFERZF—NF+=A
=t+—HB ZXEAEER REREARE
KA

o

i3
ol

5

EFRERERQTF
2020 F3;
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23.

24,

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 23.ESREMENFRIE 2
As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group's accruals RZEBE-NF+ZA=+—HB XEEZ
and other payables are surety bonds payable in the amount of JE &t R IE K H M FE 5 SR IB B AR FE T B AR
HK$28,798,000 which represented several bonded sums received by 828,798,000 T - s K IBIE A S E B AR
the Group from a contractor payable to employers of the contractor HEBmENEEEREEZE TRES
as security for good performance on the part of the contractor for EREAREARETEFEBFAANIIEY
certain building contract works of the employers. The amounts APRITFRBNER - B2 _FF+=
were repaid during the year ended 31 December 2020. R=+—RHItFE ZHEDEE-
BOND PAYABLES 24, BHEZ
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
e L —E—h%
FAR FBT
Bond payables — Unsecured &A1& 25 — R 4R 33,666 30,666

On 12 October 2018, the Company issued unlisted bonds to an
independent third party with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$30,000,000. The bonds are issued at the interest rate of 10%
per annum and will mature on the date falling on the 36 months
after the date of issue of the bonds (i.e. 12 October 2021). Interest
payables of the bonds were included with the bond payables in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The proceeds from the
issue of the bonds were used for the principal activities and general

working capital of the Group.

On 1 December 2020, the Company entered into extension
agreement to further extend 3 months from the original maturity

date.
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RZE-—NE+A+ZH KARA—%
B E =77 AT & # % /330,000,000
T2 I ETES - ZEHRFEFE10%:"
BoUHRESEITAYEH6CEARE
B ZZE-_—F+A+=R)3H -B%

ENH S ARAMBRRRAZENE
HoBRTEFZFABRBDREAEEE
BEBN-—REEED-

R-ZE-_ZEF+-_HA—H ARRFIE
HiHEUASRIBEE - FLERIMEA -
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25. DEFERRED TAX 25. ?Eﬁﬁlﬁ
The movement of deferred tax liability are as follows: REREEEZEHNOT
Fair value
adjustment
on intangible
assets
HK$'000
BREEZ
AREERAE
FET
At 1 January 2019 RZZTE-—NE—A—H 827
Credited to profit or loss for the year (Note 71) STAFEER (Ha11) (255)
At 31 December 2019 and as at 1 January 2020 R-_Z—AF+-_A=+—HBHE
—E-TF—-H—H 572
Credited to profit or loss for the year (Note 11) HAFEEBS (HiE11) (572)
At 31 December 2020 N_B_TFE+_-_HA=+—H -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses RBERR AEEB2ASHABTEEE
of approximately HK$448,305,000 (2019: HK$419,392,000). No #) /%448,305,0008 T (ZF — N F
deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses have been recognised as 419,392,000 L) - AN ERER REA
at 31 December 2020 and 2019, as management considers it is ﬁ*XﬁEﬁ%ﬁﬂ%TiﬁEE&EﬁfTﬁT B
unlikely that future taxable profits against which the losses can be EBRKERT BN AT HENAER &
utilised will be available in the foreseeable future with certainty in E(‘fgfifiﬁff NETZA=+—
the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. All of the tax losses as at EIjtﬁ%?diﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ&wbk%ﬂlﬁéﬁ G
31 December 2020 and 2019 will not be expired under current tax BRIOBZE RZZEZTFRZT—NEF
legislation. TZRAE+—BRZMEATEEBE#ETE
Hjo
26.LEASE LIABILITIES 26. HERE
2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
—EZEF —T-NF
FTER FET
Within 1 year —FR 413 1,354
More than 1 year but less than 2 years —FREMFAN 6 724
419 2,078
Analysed as: DA
— Current —nEEH s 413 1,354
— Non-current —EmBE D 6 724
419 2,078
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27.SHARE CAPITAL 27. A
Number of
shares Amount
HK$'000
KRoOEHE k2]
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREENIEIZEER
Authorised: EE
Balance as at 1 January 2019, s —hF—HA—A8-
as at 31 December 2019, —E—-h&+=-—_A=+—8"
as at 1 January 2020 and —T-FEF-A—ABK
as at 31 December 2020 —TE-FTF+_A=+—HZ#% 40,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
Balance as at 1 January 2019, —h&—RA—8"
as at 31 December 2019 and —hWFE+ZA=+—8K
as at 1 January 2020 —ETF-RA-RBZ&H 1,862,679,481 18,627
Exercise of share option (note i) TR E (At 186,200,000 3,700
Placing of new shares (note ij) B E ¥ AR (A atii) 370,000,000 1,862
Balance as at 31 December 2020 NZZT_TF+_A=+—HB2#% 2,418,879,481 24,189
Notes: B iz
(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain of share options () REZ2-_T-_ZTF+_A=+—HIL

were exercised their option right to subscribe for 186,200,000

ordinary shares of the Company at exercise price of HK$0.096 per RARBE®R  TFE A SR0.096
share. T o
(i) On 29 October 2020, the Company completed to allot and issue (il RZBEZZEF+AZ+HhB &R

370,000,000 placing shares at a placing price of HK$0.1 each to
certain places. The net proceeds of the placing will be intended to
use as a capital injection in private equity investments, improve the

cash position of the Group and general working capital.
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—REEEE-

FE -BITEBERERE86,200,000

B 1) & T AR A R BE & B 8 ARO. 1,%71
fic 3% & % 17370,000,0000% f¢ & A% 15 ©
RESEMERBFERABELER
BEEZFE REALEEZRERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant

income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

During the year, the Group made retirement benefits scheme
contributions totalling approximately HK$228,000 (2019:
HK$288,000). There are no forfeited contributions for both years.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 30 June 2015, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”), which was approved by the shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholders”) at the annual general meeting of

the Company held on the same date.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group
to grant share options to the eligible participants as incentives or

rewards for their contributions to the Group.

According to the Share Option Scheme, the board of directors
("Board”) may grant share options to the eligible participants as
defined in the Share Option Scheme to subscribe for such number

of shares as the Board may determine.

28.

29.

e MBHRRME

HE-F-—FF+-A=1—HILEFE

EEERAKER

AEBRBEBARGMEAES GG -
BEBRBRBIEAFEZEENSRZEER
B —mERH M AEeE ([RES
) mBEEHEHBUFTABTEZ
ERMFRA B - BRIERESTE EE
REEESEAREEZABBAZS%M
FTEIE L 5K L= A B B8 U A30,000
AR ER - Mt EEL 2 (KRB R -

RER AEB S EHRKEFIG B
& £ #49228,0007%8 7T ( —Z — L. 4F : 288,000
BIT) c RMEEE - B EE A2 Ut mR e

BT E

RZE-—RFERNA=ZTH RRAHEH—
HEEREFE ([BRES]) X#
ARBER (R NEBRITZARAE
RERBERE L4t

BRETIASEEAKREN RS AR H
ERLBERE FRREHAEEELER
Bl 52 Bh = [0 g

REBRESE EFE((EF€)AM
BREAIMAECAERSEERLE
Bt URBEFEAEEEHE 2RO -

EFRERERQTF
2020 F3;
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The eligible participants (“Eligible Participants”) to whom the

directors may in their discretion make an offer for grant of share

options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme belong to the

following classes of participants.

(1

(2)

3)

4)

(5)

(6)

7)

any employee (whether full time or part time, including any
executive director but excluding any non-executive director)
of the Company, any subsidiary of the Company or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest

("Invested Entity"”);

any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any subsidiary of the

Company or any Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group

or any Invested Entity;

any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested

Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technical support to any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of

the Group or any Invested Entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member of

the Group or any Invested Entity;
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29. BB PR REETEl ()
EETREERET R ERIEELET
BRENSEIR2EE ([AEIK2EE])
BRI TEGI2EE -

(1)

(©)

)

(&)

(6)

KRB ARBERME AR RAE
BT B 2 Rl A TR TR
B(AREER]WEMFEER (T
mEBIRE BREEANTES:
BTBRETAFERTES)

=

ARRF] AR BE B A R AR
PIREEBNERNIFNTES (B
BIUERITESF)

AREEEFKE AR EAAREER
B EREM RIS HER

REEEMFMKE AR HEAAREER
BOEMEFS:

RAEBEEFKBERBAREFMARE
ERIRUHAE AR EMRM R
MEMALRER:

REBEEFKE AR S EAAREE
BOTARRAAEEEFKE QA
SHAEMPIIRE BERMABITEMNESH
FBEA:

AEBEAKERRREMAEREE
BETMEBHEBEREHEROEM
ARMAT (EXREMAL) HER:
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(8) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the

development and growth of the Group; and

(9) any company wholly owned by one or more Eligible

Participants.

Share options granted should be accepted within 28 days from
the date of the letter of grant. Upon acceptance of the share
options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way
of consideration for the grant. Subject to the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and all applicable laws, the Board has the power to
determine the period within which payments or calls must or may

be made.

The exercise price of share options shall be determined by the
Board, which shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of the grant, which must be a business day;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the nominal

value of a share.

20. B PR REHEl ()

@ BBREERE FEHHBEMEMER
RHHARBEERIIEREFELRA
BEE BRI R E M2 B E B X
8/h K

Q) B EBATHRAERSEEZEHRSR
M Em A E] e

B2 BB AR B R ki B B R ET28
B REAERRER A RARRE
HZ B R AR A S 1.008TTERR
B-EBRESEGRRABERERZ
MET EFSAEARE LA AN
S AEBRIA 2 HAMR

BEREZOEEREETERTE ETED
RUATz&REE: ((IWEHBAH (BARE
EHBXAEABRERMBRBH KT
B (IMEZRLEHAAESEXABR
FrERWERMBBNFHERTE: &
(A fn mfE -

EFRERERQTF
2020 F3;
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ - F_-FF+_-_F=+—AILEE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all share options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
on the date of approval and adoption of the Share Option Scheme
provided that the Company may at any time seek approval from the
Shareholders to refresh the limit to 10% of the shares in issue as at
the date of approval by the Shareholders in general meeting where
such limit is refreshed. Share options previously granted under any
share option schemes of the Company (including those outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such schemes or exercised
options) will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit

as refreshed.

The total number of shares issued and may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as
at the date of grant unless such grant has been duly approved
by ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting at
which the relevant eligible participant and his associates abstained
from voting. Share options granted to substantial Shareholders
or Independent Non-executive Directors or any of their respective
associates in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the
Company'’s issued share capital on the date of grant and with a
value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the

Shareholders.
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RITERIEBERE & RARBEMEM
BRETES TROZHMBEBRENA T
BITZRNEBE LR AATHEEERY
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AN Z210% » HE AN 2 &) 7] B B ARSI IR SR HE U
7 LR E T ERCRN IR KRS L it FH
EREADEHTRMNZ10% A ELE
¥ ERM™ S 5 RARR AN 2 B ] BB A A
AEREBRE(BEREAREH
RITE  BEsH - DRBKE TR BARE)
BARTEE-

BEREAMS (BEZAB) ILEM128 A
B BT AR BRI IR A 8 R AN 2 B AR
HhBIREFERE 2 BRE (REBT
0 BRTiH R ARITEE 2 BEARHE) 2 81T
RABEAETTEAERLBEZRNOE
B TEBAREEABBEITIRMZ1%:
ERLAEERECNRERE LER
FAE @R R 5 E & BB BN
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The period during which a share option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
share option can be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. There is no general requirement that a share option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised. The
Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten years
and will expire at the close of business on 29 June 2025.

As at 31 December 2020, the number of shares in respect of which
may be issued upon exercise of share options granted and remain
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme was 372,400,000
(2019: 372,400,000), representing 15.4% (2019: 20.0%) of the
shares of the Company in issue at that date.

Details of share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
are as follows:

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period

20. B PR REHEl ()

BREZTENSHEZTS2RBBRE -
HERFRIE L RF0FRITE - L E|ITRE
BRENCARARBREZEANREHR
Z—RRIRE - BRAEFEM0FERAERR
ERC UK ZE_RAFEASAAZTNAE
S IR ] A SR By J v

R-E-_ZF+_A=+—H8 BEERK
B EEREMARITENERERETE
‘A TEITHAR D E B £372,400,0008%
(2019: 372,400,0000%) ' 1 & A AR A1 B 2
1T EY15.4% (2019: 20.0%) °

RIEIE ARt Bl % 2 B 2 S5 1
T~

Exercise price

i AH HEY 1THEH TEE
1 June 2017 = 1 June 2017 - 31 May 2022 HK$0.654% 7T
—ET—+FH—H —E—+FXA—H=ZE
—E-_FRA=+—H
26 July 2017 = 26 July 2017 = 25 July 2022 HK$0.123% 7T

Sl Bk N =

—E—+FELAZTRBE

T+ A=-+HH

26 April 2019 -
—E-AFHAZ=+RA

26 April 2019 - 25 April 2024
“E-NAFWAZFARAE

HK$0.0967% 7T

—E_WHENAZTHHA

4 May 2020 =
—E-ZERAMNA

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by eligible employees and other eligible participants of
the Group during the year.

4 May 2020 — 3 May 2025
“E-TFRAWAZRE
—E-RFAAZH

HK$0.087/% 7T

TREBAREAAGIERREMAE AR
SRERENFTRARNBRIES BB -

Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding at
1 January during during during 31 December
2020 the year the year the year 2020
RZZ-EF RZBZBE
-B-H +=ZA=t-H
Date of grant RHAH o R AT FRRH ERTE EREM RS
26 July 2017 I Jy = 186,200,000 = = = 186,200,000
26 April 2019 —Z-NENAZ+"A 186,200,000 - (186,200,000) - -
4 May 2020 —T-TERAMEA - 186,200,000 = = 186,200,000
372,400,000 186,200,000  (186,200,000) - 372,400,000
Exercisable at the end of the A& KA 17{E

reporting period 372,400,000

Weighted average exercise METFHITEE (Bx)
price (HK$) 0.110 0.087 0.096 - 0.105
EREZERERAR

-
2020 F 3§ 177
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continuea) 29. B EFHE (2)
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding at
1 January during during during 31 December
2019 the year the year the year 2019
RZZ-h% RZZ-1%
-A-R ‘\‘:H E‘\‘* =]
Date of grant RitAH HATTE FREH ERFTR FRENR WA
1 June 2017 —Z—t+EXA—-H 186,200,000 = - (186,200,000) -
26 July 2017 I o Py =] 186,200,000 - - - 186,200,000
26 April 2019 “Z-NFMAZ+AH = 186,200,000 = - 186,200,000
372,400,000 186,200,000 - (186,200,000 372,400,000
Exercisable at the end of the ~ RBEHRAITE
reporting period 372,400,000
Weighted average exercise METFHITEE (Bx)
price (HK$) 0.389 0.096 = 0.654 0.110

No share options were exercised during the year ended 31

December 2019. During the year ended 31 December 2019,

186,200,000 share options were lapsed.

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2020 had a

weighted average exercise price of approximately HK$0.105 (2019:

HK$0.110) and a weighted average remaining contractual life of

approximately 2.95 years (2019: 3.44 years).

The weighted average fair value of the share options granted during

the year ended 31 December 2020 determined at the date of

grant using the Binomial Option Pricing Model was approximately

HK$0.0272 (2019: HK$0.0269).
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e

RZZE_ZEF+_A=T—HHRITEZ
BB AR M I T 1T B 4 R0.1058 7T (—
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

These fair values were calculated using the Binomial Option Pricing

Model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

e MBHRRME

29. B ESHE (2)

WEARBEN-_BABEEEEAE -
FZBRAZBABLT

4 May 2020 26 April 2019

Grant date REBH —EZEF ZE-NF
HEAMA B=+7xH

Share price on date of grant REL BB ZRE HK$0.084/& 7T  HK$0.093#& 7T
Exercise price TEE HK$0.0877# 7L  HK$0.096/% 7T
Expected volatility TEHK B) 64.96% 65.95%
Expected life TEEHFHA 5 yearsF 5 yearstF
Risk-free rate [ b bt R 0.36% 1.61%
Expected dividend yield TEEIR B X 0% 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the Company’s share price over the previous five years. The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on the
valuer’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise

restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$5,068,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$5,009,000) in relation to
share options granted by the Company.

HE-F-—FF+-A=1—HILEFE

BEHRBRIBARBNBESF 2 ARAR
BzRLEEREE ZENERZEFF
HEREGBEMLIIERRE TER
B RITRERMKEMTEHAE-

REE-_ZT-TF+-_A=+—HL1tF
EASEBHREAQNRBEL BRES
8 9 48 79 55,068,000 7T (=T — L&
5,009,000 7T ) °

EFRERERQTF
2020 F3;
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ - F_-FF+_-_F=+—AILEE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 30. & Q A Z B B AR R &

COMPANY
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-EF —T-NF
FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current asset IRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RBRAR Z = 1 1
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H {th i W 5k I8 581 605
Amounts due from subsidiaries NN S 101,549 119,577
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 804 1,853
102,934 122,035
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H b e 3R 2,571 2,267
Net current assets RBEERE 100,363 119,768
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERARBER 100,364 119,769
Non-current liability FRBEE
Bond payables FERHESH 33,666 30,666
Net assets EEFE 66,698 89,103
EQUITY EE
Share capital A& A< 24,189 18,627
Reserves f#E 42,509 70,476
Total equity fERBE 66,698 89,103
On behalf of the Board: REREFE:

Zhang Hengxin Jia Minghui
RTE EHHE
Director Director

BE EE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

31.RESERVES - COMPANY 31. B —A L F
Share Share option Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RAP &R E BRERE i ER st
FERT FERT FHET FHET
As at 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—A—H 402,912 10,771 (323,115) 90,568
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEBEEREZERALE
income for the year - - (25,101) (25,101)
Lapse of share options BERREL A = (7,020) 7,020 =
Recognition of equity-settled RO AEREREE L
share-based payment expenses 5 % 2 #ER - 5,009 - 5,009
As at 31 December 2019 and RZE-NF+ZA=1+—H
as at 1 January 2020 kZZ-TF—F—H 402,912 8,760 (341,196) 70,476
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEBEEREZERALE
income for the year - - (82,348) (82,348)
Recognition of equity-settled DAkt REW G A
share-based payment expenses  fH B X Z HER - 5,068 - 5,068
Exercise of share options od1e 21,022 (5,009) = 16,013
Placing of shares ) 33,300 - - 33,300
As at 31 December 2020 R-Z_ZF+_A=t—H 457,234 8,819 (423,544) 42,509
ERERERAT

-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+_-F=+—HAULFE

32. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Name of subsidiaries

Place/country of
incorporation

Issued and paid-up
share capital/
registered capital

32 RMB AR 2

Percentage of equity interest

attributable to the Company Principal activities

WEARER ERRIEEBR BRIRBRREERER ARREERER DL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
HE B
ACE Engineering Limited Hong Kong 5,000,000 ordinary - 100%  Engaged in building
shares of construction, building
HK$ 15,255,000 maintenance and
improvement works,
project management,
renovation and
decoration works in
Hong Kong
ZATRERAH BE 15,255,000 7 < & & REALSZETRE BF
75,000,0008% BERREIR BERE
B REREHTIE
AMCO United Management Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100%  Provision of management
Services Limited HK$1 services to the Group
EREBRBEERAR 0 BT B@RR AR ERHEERRY
Best Reward Global Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
("BVI") Us$1
EERRBRAF ABRABS([RBR HAEIFTZERRIR REZR
z#8])
Constant Gross Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
Us$1
RaBRAA EEELHS EEIRTZEBRIK REER
Consun Wealth Management Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Provision of management
Limited of HK$100,000 services to the Group
REMEERERAA BB 100,0007% 7T 2 & @ mAEERGERRY
100,000
Dynamic Time Global Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
Us$1
BEREIRIRERAA ARERHS HE1RTZ EBRIK REZER
Energy Best Investments Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
Us$1
Energy Best Investments Limited ~ REREZES HE1ETZEBRK BAER

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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32.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32 RME B 2R ()
Issued and paid-up
Place/country of share capital/ Percentage of equity interest
Name of subsidiaries incorporation registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
KELEERE EMR L EX BRATRBRRE EMER ARAEEREED L TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B B3
FITAIERELZABRAR*  the PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
RYTAEREEABRAR E AR 5,000,0007T REZR
EESREXERAA the PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100% Investment holding
EREREEERAA FE AR #10,000,0007C RERR
Grace Champ Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of = 100% Engaged in the business of
HK$1 securities investment
REREBRAF BE BT ERBRIR NEBSREEH
JS Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of = 100%  Provision of money lending
HK$1
BRIEMBERRA BE BT ERRIR RERERY
Max Abundant Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
US$1
BRERNA EBRAHES HEIETEBRIK RERR
Titron Industries Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of = 100%  Sale of plastic moulding
HK$1,000 products
rERIEFRAF 0 1,000 T2 @K HELEBEAER
1,0008%
Titron International Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of = 100%  Sale of medical devices
HK$1,000 products
RRRREBRAF 0 1,000 T2 &R HEBRRBER
1,0008%
Titron Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of = 100%  Sale of plastic moulding
HK$1,000 products
ERARCEERAF Bk 1,000 T2 &R HERBRAER
1,0008%
Titron Precision Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of = 100%  Investment holding
HK$1,000
RREERRAF B 1,000 T2 EER RE®RR
1,0008%

ERERERAT
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32.

33.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2020 and 2019 which, in the opinion of the Directors,
principally affected the Group's results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

* Wholly-foreign owned enterprise

The subsidiaries in the PRC are private companies with limited

liabilities.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end

of the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of the directors and other members of key

management during the year was as follows:

32.

33.

RMEBAR 2R (&)

FRINER _ZB_ZFER_ZB-NF+Z
A=+ BEFRAFEFELEEAF
EEEIEBRAEEEEFEEABHZ
RATRMBAR -EFRA B YL E MM
BRAAZHBREBERBRIIR

* HNEBELE

TEIMERARR/LABTRAIA

R BEMBRARBRTEABEES-

BEALXRS
TEEEAS 2R

EFREMETEEERERERNZHH
m -

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

—EZBF —E-NF

FHERT FHET

Salaries and short-term employee benefits FeREHEESRT 906 8,522
Retirement benefits scheme contribution R ET B3R 17 198
Share-base payment expenses AR BER 2R 1,575 =
Post-employment benefits BBERT - 120
2,498 8,840
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34. CASH FLOW INFORMATION 34.REREER
(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (a) METHELACEBZHER

financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TERFINAEEREETHEELECBE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non- 28 RERSRIRGEH -HE
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are EHELECZABEERSREELIR
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, RREREBRGEABERERTD
classified in the consolidated statement of cash flows from HAMEETHRERENAE-

financing activities.

Bond Lease
payables liabilities Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1 &S HESE @t
FHET FHET FHET
Balance as at 31 December 2018 RZZE—\F+ZA=+—HZ#&#% 3,000 - 30,666
Recognition upon initial application & X f& f & /& B4 15 3 & %2 Al
of HKFRS 16 F165 2 R - 657 657
Adjusted balance as at 1 January 2019 =T — N F— A — B 2 &AEL#H 30,666 657 31,323
Financing cash flows BERERE
— Interest paid -BERFE (3,000) a7 (3,077)
- Repayment of lease liabilities - BEHERRE = (828) (828)
New leases entered into BRIVHMEE - 2,249 2,249
Other non-cash changes (Note) HiERe B (Hat) 3,000 77 3,077
Balance as at 31 December 2019 and R=—Z—NF+_A=+—HK
as at 1 January 2020 —EEE-A-BzH&EH 30,666 2,078 32,744
Financing cash flows BERERE
— Interest paid -BERFE - (64) (64)
— Repayment of lease liabilities -EEBHEERE - (1,201) (1,201)
New leases entered into BRIVHMEE - 135 135
Other non-cash changes (Note) Hin IR B8 (M) 3,000 (529) 2,471
Balance as at 31 December 2020 RZZEZZFE+_R=+—-B2z#&&# 33,666 419 34,085
Note:  Other non-cash changes represented interest expenses Mt EtFERSEZHEEERTE
recognised and gain on early termination of lease. A RREE&REAE 2 W

-
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34. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 4. BEREER ()
(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HEZRERLHEE
The total cash outflow for leases, including leases of right-of- HE-ZT-_TF+-_A=1T—HIEF
use assets, short-term leases and lease of low-value assets, B BiETRAEEERE RHHEE
for the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately MMEEEEERENHEZRSR
HK$1,380,000 (2019: approximately HK$1,565,000). 485849 /51,380,0008 T (ZE— 1

£ 1 491,565,000/ 7T ) °

35. COMMITMENTS 35. A& iE
Capital commitments BAREE
The Group did not have any outstanding capital commitments as at RZEZTFRZT—NF+ZA=1—
31 December 2020 and 2019. B AR5 B AR A i R E R B AN AR -
36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36. RARAE
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December RZEZTFRZT-NFT_A=+—
2020 and 2019. B AEEHBEERLABE-
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37.SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The following table shows the carrying amount and fair value of

the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities:

37. BRI B s e B EER M

BEERE

TRINTAKEHFEERMBABLZ
EEERAAEE:

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
—ECEF “E-hF
FERT FET
Financial assets: MBEE:
Financial assets at FVTPL FRBEREARBEIEZVBEE
— Equity instrument at fair value - FERBEREARBEIKRZ
through profit or loss EamT A 35,851 -
— Held-for-trading investments —RBEBEERE 23,969 14,277
Financial assets at amortised cost REBHEKANRZ MG EE
— Trade and other receivables —ZH RAMEKRFIE 147,666 159,487
— Cash and cash equivalents —-RekBREEEY 4,131 12,288
211,617 186,052
Financial liabilities: BEE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHEKANEREZMBEE
- Trade and other payables —B S REMENFRE 46,578 53,164
- Bond payables —FERES 33,666 30,666
80,244 83,830
Fair value measurement NREESE

Financial instruments carried at other than fair value

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the Group’s

financial instruments measured at amortised costs approximate to

their fair values.

WHEAAEEIRZHETAR

EXERRAEHIRBHENAGTEZMBET
AZREERE QA EERES-

ERERERAT
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37.SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 37.RERE D 2B EE KRB

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(continued)
Fair value of financial instruments

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages independent qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. The management works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The management reports the findings
to the directors at the end of each reporting period to explain the

cause of fluctuations in fair value of the asset.

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used in

the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: fair value measured using only level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date;

o Level 2 valuations: fair value measured using level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are input

for which market data are not available; and

e Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using significant

unobservable inputs.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

37.SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

e MBHRRME

37. BRI B s e B EER M

BKEEME»

BETENAREE#)

HE-F-—FF+-A=1—HILEFE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5-8 ot $=B @5t
FEL FAEL FAET FAET
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-Z&+-A=t—H
Fair value on a recurring basis BASEMEELL L EEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BERBRERON BETER
ZHBEE
- Held-for-trading investments ~ —F{EEERE 23,969 - - 23,969
- Equity instruments at fair value —BBEREZEAAEE
through profit or loss SR R T A - - 35,851 35,851
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E-B F-E £=E @t
FTiET FTiET FTiET FTiET
As at 31 December 2019 RZB-hE+=ZRA=+—H
Fair value on a recurring basis A E I EENUR A EEFTE
Financial assets at FVTPL BERBEREANEE
SRz BB E
- Held-for-trading investments ~ —#{EEERE 14,277 = = 14,277

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair
value hierarchy levels at the end of the date of the events or

change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were no transfers

between level 1 and level 2, or transfers into or out of level 3.

REEZBRR/ERANEBER 2 M4k
MEBHEZ BERKHAAEERZER
%%&F&JL%&‘D

BE-Z-TE+-A=+—ALFE
ER D E A PAORR T TN T PN
HHLE=E-
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37.SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 37. RERNE D oM BEER
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BREEME o
(continued)
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) BEITEMNAAREE &)
The following table presents the changes in fair value of equity THREINBE_ZE_TF+-_A=+—H
instruments at fair value through profit or loss which are classified EFE DEAE-EEANZEBBERIZ
as level 3 category for the year ended 31 December 2020: AREBEIEZEZTAN AR EEEE):
HK$'000
FET
As at 1 January 2019, as at 31 December 2019 R=ZT—NL&E—A—8" —NE
and as at 1 January 2020 +ZA=+—ARZZEZEF—H—H =
Acquired during the year FAYEE 33,747
Gain on change in fair value NRABEEFH K 202
Exchange realignment PE i & 1,902
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZB-ZBF+=-A=+—H 35,851
Information about level 3 fair value measurements EBE=EBAAEHETENEN
Significant Relation of significant unobservable
Valuation technique unobservable input inputs to fair value
B BEATTEEBHAUE EATTHEEHABRBEAAEENRER
Equity instruments at fair value Income approach Discount rate: 20.1%  The higher the discount rate, the lower
through profit or loss the fair value
BERBERANEBEIE WAE BHIRE :20.1% BREME AAEBEME
ZHERTE
Discount of lack of The higher the discount rate, the lower

marketability: 16.0%  the fair value
Rz M5 RE T BREME AABEME
& 16.0%
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(continued)
Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Information about level 3 fair value measurements

(continued)

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the management work
closely with International Valuation Limited to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The
management reports the findings to the directors at the end of
each reporting period to explain the cause of fluctuations in fair

value of the asset.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in

determining the above fair value are disclosed above.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit risk and impairment assessment, liquidity risk,
interest rate risk and currency risks arises in the normal course of
the Group’s business. The Group is also exposed to equity price
risk arising from movements in its own equity share price and its

investment in equity securities.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments in the
normal course of the Group's business are credit risk, liquidity risk,

interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’'s
headquarter, in close co-operation with the Board. The overall
objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing the Group’s
short to medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure to

financial markets.

37.

38.

e MBHRRME

HE-F-—FF+-A=1—HILEFE

RERE D 2 EEEREY
BEEHME »#)

BETENAREE#)

EHE=FLAEEHBHEN
(#&)
HAEENAREBER BEERBERF

HERAARZ A BIEE HERM
RZBAZBAE-ERERSREHRR
MEFERBAER UBBEEQIAE
BERBZREA-

BELRAAEERERNGERMME

ANEREBEER N EXHE-

KR EER
AEBEZZEZERRMREF G TE
BeRB FXRKREKEERRIIRER

EGBREZPEE - ARBRAZAEAR
GZBREEBHRERBABF 2 REME
EZBRERR-

RARBZ EREBKBETRAAKERNB
TAMEAZTERBRREERR R
AR MEXER B¥RERRRERER

&5 o
RA

AEBRREEEGRIAE BRAYB
REREE T - EENEERZERAIE
SPREBBEREERSRTS 2 AR
A REAEEZDEHRRSRE-
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

These risks are limited by the Group's financial management policies

and practices described below.

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements
is the gross carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group's credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade and other receivables and cash and
cash equivalents. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an

ongoing basis.

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information specific to the
customers as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customers operate. Trade receivables are due
within 30-90 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 6 months past due are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers, except for new customers, where payment in

advance is normally required.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has
an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of
the reporting period, the Group has a certain concentration of
credit risk as 19% (2019: 31%) and 89% (2019: 89%) of the
total gross trade receivables was due from the Group's largest

customer and the five largest customers respectively.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

S.HKRAMERE &)

ZERRIDE T X A& AN EE 2 M5 E R
B K B BR A -

0]

= & EBa &R E R

AEBAG RAEMAFEFRKEME
Bz R EERRTIESHBR
MARASCHERHFEE Z BIREE -
AEEZEERRIERANEES
REMEWHRBANRRE RIREEE
M- EEBRAMREZFEERE L
FREEMEARZEERR -

HESHEUPRIEM S B ERKBH
BEERME B P EETERE BT
e ZETEEPREPBEREIEH
R RoeR  ARIRFEERR 2B
TEEZEEFPREZHRFENKLZE
EPREME RERE -ZHEI
FIEBEFRHMLIT30E90H "E
HeZpamBAE@AANLEZBEBAR
EREME-FEERRBENEGH
REREHR - —BRM s XEETS
MEFPWIRERD EREP—RE
BN FKIE -

AEEFHBGZEERBREIFEZER
FREANSEMTE - EEAEEITE
RigEMERRZBRARITEHEE
RBEMEE HEER/N-RERE
HR AEERFETEREERR:
ERAEBBEARFRAREFZXK
EARNEE PR IEETEZ19% (=
T—NF:31%)K%89% (ZT— N
£:89%) e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables

are set out in Note 21.

For loan receivables, the directors make periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability of loan receivables based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and also
guantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and

supportive forward-looking information.

The Group considers loan receivable as doubtful if the
repayment of principal and/or interest has been overdue for
more than 3 months and principal. The Group considers the
loan and loan interest receivable as loss if the repayments of
principal and/or interest have been overdue for more than 6
months for loan and loan interest receivable; and in cases the
collection of principal and/or interest in full is improbable.
The directors considered that credit quality classification of
gross loan receivable with the amounts of approximately
HK$4,759,000 (2019: HK$3,878,000) as performing and
HK$21,498,000 (2019: nil) as a loss.

Details of impairment loss recognised and movement of
ECL are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial

statements.

e MBHRRME

HE-F-—FF+-A=1—HILEFE

3. AEMERE &)
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

()

(ii)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

For deposits and other receivables, the management makes
periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of
deposits and other receivables based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The management believes that there is
no significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition and the Group provided impairment based
on 12m ECL except for balances of HK$2,400,000 (2019:
nil) were impaired based on lifetime ECL classified as credit-
impaired as a result of significant increase in credit risk. For
the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, impairment loss
of approximately HK$2,580,000 (2019: nil) are recognised
in respect of deposits and other receivables during the year

ended 31 December 2020.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents were bank balances in
reputable banks. Bankruptcy or insolvency of the banks may
cause the Group's right with respect to bank balances held to
be delayed or limited. The directors monitor the credit rating
of these banks on an ongoing basis, and consider that the
Group's exposure to credit risk as at 31 December 2020 and

31 December 2019 were minimal.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily
realisable marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(ii) Liquidity risk (continuea)

S.HKRAMERE &)

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities

at the based on undiscounted cash flows (including interest

payments computed at the end of the reporting period) and

the earliest date the Group can be required as at 31 December

2020 and 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2020

(i) RBEESRARE #)

TRETR-_Z-_ZEF+-_A=+—
BE—ZE-AF+_A=1t—HZ#H
TEXNIHBE DRERBABR SR

B (BERHRSHARFEZNENT)
RERAEEERZ ZFAHMEH -

R-ZB-_ZEF+=-HA=+—H

Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flows on demand 2 years 5 years
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BHRER —FRH —F# MmE#
REE ReREAE RER BRER BEER
TR TR THER TR TER
Non-derivative financial ~ #fTEHKEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 RE M RE 46,578 46,578 46,578 = =
Bond payables ENESR 33,666 36,750 6,000 30,750 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 419 428 422 6 -
80,663 83,756 53,000 30,756 -
As at 31 December 2019 R-_ZBE—hAF+-_A=+—8H
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flows on demand 2 years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRARME —FR% — % MER
REE RenERE REX BREA EBREFR
THT TR THEL THER FEL
Non-derivative financial ~ F{T4£HKEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables ZoRHMERNFTIE 53,164 53,164 53,164 - -
Bond payables FEfIES 30,666 36,000 3,000 33,000 S
Lease liabilities HEaE 2,078 2,154 1,419 735 -
85,908 91,318 57,583 33,735 -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk related to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in market interest rate.

38. B ERE

(III) Iﬁ;%umi

oo
AN

) 2= [ fe

EMERTISFIE

B g

DARAEENRER

QR BTRZ
BB N E) 2 AR

AN

BERR

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly arises from
bank deposits which earn interests at floating rates. As at
31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not have any
interest-bearing liabilities at floating rates. The Group has not
used any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk. The Group has not formulated a policy to manage

the interest rate risk. The directors considered that the Group's

REBAR 2 FXREREERBERIR
EERBAMB ZBITFER - R_FZ
EER_ZE-NAF+ZA=+—8"
REBW BT EABEE-
REEWEGEREATETIEGLNE
SRR S R B o R £R N A I E 1R A
KEBIBER - EETRANERAR

exposure to interest rate risk is not significant.

(iv) Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong. The functional
currency of the Company and most of its subsidiaries is HK$.
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
that are denominated primarily in United States Dollar ("US$")
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. Both US$
and RMB are currencies other than the functional currencies of

the operations to which they related.

Z R R

B RER
AEEEE

(iv)

REE—

2 NE Ko

REBEE-
REEBAB 2
7—?¢& ?7j—|4£ﬁ+:

ok 15
BE &

KRR RE
BRET

A=Z+t—RALEE AKEZEKRE

BREFERRNEBUART([ET])
AHEZHE XTI RARKE LM
KB ZNEEBEAIIZ T’ -

uUs$ RMB

EY4 AR®
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=t et 23 —E-NF —EDEF —E-NF
FHERT FHET FHERT FHET
Trade and other receivables & 5 & 4t e U 708 756 419 = =
Cash and cash equivalents ReELBEEEED 25 155 61 40
Trade and other payables B 5 K& H At FE A 5UE (2,566) (71) (80) (353)
Overall net exposure BEERERRFE (1,785) 503 (19) (313)

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(iv) Currency risk (continued)

(v)

As HK$ is pegged to the US$, the Group does not have
material exchange rate risk on such currency. The transactions
and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in RMB is
minimal, the Group considers there has no material currency
risk exposure in respect of RMB. Therefore, no sensitivity

analysis is performed.

Price risk

The Group's held-for-trading investments are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Therefore,
the Group is exposed to equity security price risk. The
Directors manage this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of

investments with different risk profiles.

The Group's loss after tax for the year would decrease/increase
as a result of gains/losses on change in fair value of held-for-

trading investments recognised in profit or loss.

At 31 December 2020, if the share prices of the investments
increase/decrease by 5%, the Group's loss before income tax
would be approximately HK$1,198,000 (2019: HK$714,000)
lower/higher, arising as a result of the fair value change of

held-for-trading investments.

e MBHRRME
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ - F_-FF+_-_F=+—AILEE

39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. 5 E e EE

The Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for Shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher Shareholders’
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes

in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net

debts as total interest-bearing liabilities comprising bond payables

AEBEREAEEREBARE ZFHER
R i BE S A AR R BRCRIZ T 3R
A LA R 55 4R B B S R R &R

REBE S NE e R EREEARRE -
HEAERSEEKTFARTERZESRR
Cl3REIMG TR E SRR Z B 88
REZBESTE TREERR 2 BE
HERRBETRAE

AEBENFEBHABRREA L XER
HERNEB - U5 NEEREFES
RPEME24R26WE 2 BNESFREE

.

BB RERRERREEED-
KABRERBREBRANFERBZIARGEE

components of share capital and reserves and the consolidated HEBRMBIHS -

and lease liabilities as disclosed in Notes 24 and 26 respectively, a8

less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all

statement of changes in equity respectively.

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

—z-ef —E-hE

FET FHET

Bond payables ERES 33,666 30,666
Lease liabilities HE&E 419 2,078
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BRENREEEY (4,131) (12,288)
Net debt FEK 29,954 20,456
Adjusted capital KABERK 132,093 106,287
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio FEEKHEBREERLE 23% 19%

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F_-FF+-F=+—HAULFE

40.DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 40. HE —ERE QA
On 29 September 2020, the Group completed the disposal of the RZBZZFNAZFT B - AEETK
entire equity interest of I REMBHRFREERBRAF(IERE HEILRENRERNEERER AR (ML
F") at a zero consideration. The net liabilities of HK$62,000, at the REM]BME2IRE REAZ -RNEEE
date of disposal were as follow: HH & EF5E62,0008 L0 T
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost: BALZEHBZEEREBZSH:
HK$'000
FHT
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEEY 3
Accruals FE s FIE (65)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEBEFHE (62)
Gain on disposal of 1t XE& Fl: HEILRERZ W
HK$'000
FHT
Cash consideration received BWRESNKE -
Net liabilities disposed of BEREBEFE 62
Gain on disposal of 1t &M HEIEREMZ W 62
Net cash outflow arising on disposal of it 5 & #l: HEIRERNELEZ B HHFHE:
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration received BWHRSNKE >
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B ELERERESEED 3)
Net cash outflow RemHFE (3)
ERERBRDA

2020 F 3] 199
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Financial Summary

MBHRE

1. RESULTS

1.

For the year ended 31 December

£

BE+-A=t-RLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—EC-EF —Z-nE —T-N\F e s ZT-RF
TET FTET THT THT FTET
Revenue from continuing REFELEEB YA
operations 53,768 67,707 112,279 87,932 98,400
Loss before income tax REFELEER Y
from continuing operations BRATETiAIEE (35,541) (34,801) (26,773) (147,906) (18,370)
Income tax credit from REBELEEB
continuing operations EHER 572 255 21 47 426
Loss for the year from REBRIEZEEB
discontinued operations FEEE - = = (7 (465)
Loss for the year attributable ~ AAREAR ABEFEHE
to owners of the Company (34,969) (34,546) (26,752) (147,930) (18,409)
2. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 2. EEREAE
At 31 December
R+=-A=t+-H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZZCEF “Z-nE —Z-N\F S s —T-KF
TET FET T TET FET
Total assets BEE 212,756 192,817 234,093 228,211 334,004
Total liabilities BEaR 80,663 86,530 98,258 62,528 31,162
Equity attributable to ARREEAEGRER
owners of the Company 132,093 106,287 135,835 165,683 302,842

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED

Annual Report 2020
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